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02/21/2024 
 
The Honorable Board of Directors 
Tampa Bay Water 
2575 Enterprise Road 
Clearwater, FL  33763  
 
We are pleased to submit the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for Tampa Bay Water (Agency) for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2023, LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK VHFWLRQ      RI WKH $JHQF\·V 8WLOLW\ 6\VWHP 5HYHQXH %RQG 5HVROXWLRQ  

Resolution number 98-07.  The purpose of this report is to provide the Board of Directors (Board), member agencies, 
investors, the public and other interested parties with reliable financial information about the Agency. 
 
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in the ACFR, which 
is based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that was established for this purpose.  Because the costs of 
internal controls should not exceed the anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatements.   
 
Agency policy requires that an independent certified public accounting firm, approved by the Board, audit the financial 
VWDWHPHQWV RQ DQ DQQXDO EDVLV   0DXOGLQ   -HQNLQV KDYH LVVXHG DQ XQPRGLILHG  RU FOHDQ  RSLQLRQ RQ WKH $JHQF\·V ILQDQFLDO 

statements for fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.   
 
0DQDJHPHQW·V  'LVFXVVLRQ  DQG  $QDO\VLV   0' $   LPPHGLDWHO\  IROORZV  WKH  LQGHSHQGHQW  DXGLWRU·V  UHSRUW  LQ  WKH  )LQDQFLDO 

Section and provides an overview, summary and analysis of the financial statements.  The MD&A complements this Letter 
of Transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.   
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Tampa Bay Water Profile 

Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority (the Agency), formerly the West Coast Regional Water Supply 
Authority (the Predecessor Authority), was created on October 25, 1974, by enabling state legislation under Florida Statute 
Sections 163.01, 373.713, and 373.715. Hillsborough, Pasco, and Pinellas counties and the cities of New Port Richey, St. 
Petersburg, and Tampa comprise the Member Governments of the Agency. A Governance Study was adopted by the Florida 
Legislature in 1997 (the 1997 Legislation) amending Section 373.1963, Florida Statutes. 

As part of the 1997 Legislation, the Agency became governed by the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement and the 
Master Water Supply Contract. The Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement expires upon the later of the following 
dates: the fortieth anniversary of the commencement date or the date on which no Obligations remain outstanding pursuant 
to the Financing Documents, currently these dates align in 2038. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement 
and Master Water Supply Contract, the Agency is required to meet the Quality Water needs of the Member Governments 
and to charge a uniform per-1,000 gallons wholesale rate to Member Governments for the wholesale supply of drinking water� 
with one exception for the City of Tampa. The Agency charges a separate rate to the City of Tampa for water delivered from 
the Tampa Bypass Canal.  

The Agency provides quality drinking water to its six-member governments whose water service areas serve more than 2.5 
million residents in the Tampa Bay region. The region is served by a combination of groundwater, surface water and 
desalinatHG VHDZDWHU  6LQFH WKH $JHQF\·V LQFHSWLRQ LQ       JURXQGZDWHU pumping has been reduced by more than 50 percent. 
 
Tampa Bay Water Mission 

To reliably provide clean, safe water to the Tampa Bay region now and for future generations. 
 
Tampa Bay Water Vision 

Tampa Bay Water's vision is to be the leader in supplying sustainable, quality water. 
 
Board of Directors 

The Board of 'LUHFWRUV  WKH ´%RDUGµ  RI 7DPSD %D\ :DWHU LV FRPSRVHG RI WZR GLUHFWRUV HDFK Irom Hillsborough, Pasco, 
and Pinellas counties and one director each from the cities of New Port Richey, St. Petersburg, and Tampa. Each member of 
the Board is an elected official. In the case of Hillsborough, Pasco and Pinellas counties, the members of the Board are 
appointed by their respective Board of County Commissioners and serve at the pleasure of their respective Boards. In the 
case of the cities of St. Petersburg and Tampa, their representatives are currently chosen by their respective Mayors. In the 
case of the city of New Port Richey, its representative is currently the Mayor. 

Organizational Structure ² Fiscal Year 2023 

The General Counsel LV DSSRLQWHG E\ DQG VHUYHV DW WKH SOHDVXUH RI WKH $JHQF\·V %RDUG RI 'LUHFWRUV DQG LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU 

managing the legal representation of the Agency, employing necessary legal staff with Board approval, providing legal advice 
and support to the Board, General Manager and Agency staff, and performing other duties as directed by the Board. The 
General Counsel position is currently outsourced to an outside law firm.  

The General Manager is appointed by and serves at the pleasure of the Agency's Board of Directors and is responsible for 
providing the leadership to develop and expand the organization in a multitude of activities in the areas of finance and 
administration, human resources, public affairs, science, technology, and water production, ensuring that Board policies and 
programs are implemented in accordance with the Board's direction. The General Manager oversees five agency divisions.  

Divisions: 

Business Strategies Division is responsible for strategic business planning for the agency and supports and directs change 
management throughout the agency while building and maintaining key relationships across the organization, with member 
governments, elected officials, stakeholders, and the public. The Chief of Staff/Chief Strategy Officer oversees the division 
which includes the Government Affairs, Public Communications, Continuous Improvement, Safety Services and Human 
Resources departments. 
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The Finance & Administration Division controls finances, procurement, inventory, risk, and vital records. The Finance 
  $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ 'LYLVLRQ LV OHG E\ WKH &KLHI )LQDQFLDO 2IILFHU ZKLFK UHSRUWV GLUHFWO\ WR WKH $JHQF\·V *HQHUDO 0DQDJHU   

The Information Technology Division LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU VXSSRUWLQJ WKH DJHQF\·V FRPSXWHU  FRPPXQLFDWLRQV  DQG GDWD 

systems and is composed of three core cross-functional teams: Applications, Systems, and Supervisory and Control and Data 
Acquisition (SCADA). The division is OHG E\ WKH ,QIRUPDWLRQ 7HFKQRORJ\ 'LUHFWRU ZKLFK UHSRUWV GLUHFWO\ WR WKH $JHQF\·V 

General Manager. 

The Science Division leads the Agency in the efficient management of data and information to support all regulatory 
compliance, permitting and reporting services, source water assessment, decision support activities and water quality services.  
7KH 6FLHQFH 'LYLVLRQ LV OHG E\ WKH &KLHI 6FLHQFH 2IILFHU ZKLFK UHSRUWV GLUHFWO\ WR WKH $JHQF\·V *HQHUDO 0DQDJHU    

Planning & Projects Division LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH GHOLYHU\ RI WKH $JHQF\·V &DSLWDO ,PSURYHPHQWV 3URJUDP LQFOXGLQJ 

design, permitting, and construction of capital projects. Additionally, the division is responsible for engineering evaluations, 
surveying, utility conflict management, and real estate management and acquisition. The Planning and Projects Director 
oversees the division which is comprised of five departments: Engineering, Surveying, Construction, Real Estate, and 
Planning & Projects. 

The Water Production Division operates, supports, monitors, and maintains Agency facilities to continuously provide high-
quality drinking water to our members. The Chief Operating Officer oversees the Division which is divided into five 
departments: Operations, Maintenance, Maintenance Planning and Support, Reservoir Compliance, and Building-Grounds 
and Fleet.   

 
Executive Team 

The Executive Team of Tampa Bay Water provides strategic and operational leadership and is composed of the General 
Manager, General Counsel, Chief of Staff/Chief Strategy Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief 
Science Officer, Human Resources Director, Information Technology Director, Continuous Improvement Director, and 
Planning and Projects Director. The Executive Team develops goals, strategic plans, company policies and is responsible for 
the overall direction of the Agency, as directed by the Board of Directors.  

 
Economic Conditions and Outlook 

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is considered from the broader perspective 
of the specific environment within which Tampa Bay Water resides.  

Tampa Bay Water provides water to its members which consist of three counties, Hillsborough, Pasco, and Pinellas and one 
city within each of those counties, New Port Richey, St. Petersburg, and Tampa. More than 2.5 million people receive water 
from Tampa Bay Water through its members.  

$FFRUGLQJ WR 0RRG\·V &RUSRUDWLRQ HDFK RI WKH WKUHH FRXQWLHV KDV VHHQ DQ LQFUHDVH LQ WRWDO SRSXODWLRQ  SHU FDSLWD LQFRPH  

single-family permits, and multifamily permits from calendar year 2022 to 2023. Hillsborough County had the highest 
percentage increase in population at 1.98 percent, single-family building permits at 0.20 percent, and multi-family building 
permits at 0.43 percent. Pasco County led the way in the increase in per Capita Income at 4.54 percent. There was a significant 
decrease in the unemployment rate in the region which was related to the COVID-19 pandemic recovery, Pinellas County 
had the highest unemployment rate decrease at 4.77%.    

The positive trends are expected to continue over the next few years for all three counties with Hillsborough County leading 
the way in population and single-family building permits, while Pasco County expects to have the highest increase in per 
capita income and largest decrease in the unemployment rate.  

Long-Range Planning 

To achieve the mission and vision of the agency, a strategic plan was created for use as a five-year road map. The Agency 
completed the new Strategic Plan which was approved by the Board of Directors in January 2022.  
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The 2022-     6WUDWHJLF 3ODQ ZDV GHYHORSHG WR PHHW WKH %RDUG·V  WKUHH RYHUDUFKLQJ UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV  UHOLDEOH ZDWHU VXSSO\  

environmental stewardship, and cost-effective rate, and includes six goals: 

x Deliver Quality Water and enhance system reliability and sustainability. 

x Continually improve agency operations. 

x Optimize financial stability and sustainability. 

x Promote open, collaborative relationships with stakeholders. 

x Ensure a quality and safe workforce. 

x Safeguard agency infrastructure. 

The agency strives to continually improve and become more efficient in operating and maintaining the supply system and 
SODQQLQJ IRU WKH UHJLRQ·V IXWXUH ZDWHU QHHGV  7KH     -2027 Strategic Plan can be found at:   

https://www.tampabaywater.org/wpͲcontent/uploads/2022Ͳ2027ͲTampaͲBayͲWaterͲStrategicͲPlanͲUpdatedͲ
2023.pdf 

 

Fund Structure Overview  

Tampa Bay Water consists of one major Enterprise Fund, which is further broken down into additional funds and accounts 
for accounting purposes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revenue Account - the initial depository for all Agency revenue and is transferred to other funds as required. 
Rate Stabilization Account ² funded/used by the annual budget and/or Board approved transfers, including 
funding of the Revenue Account. 
Operation, Maintenance, and Administration Fund - pays all operating and administrative costs of the Agency 
and includes the Operating Reserve Fund. 
Renewal and Replacement Fund - pays costs for repairs and replacement of the system, as needed, and approved 
by the Board. 
Capital Improvement Fund - pays costs of various capital projects as designated and approved by the Board. 
Energy Fund -  pays costs of various energy program projects as designated and approved by the Board. 
Released Debt Service Fund - pays costs of various capital projects as designated and approved by the Board. 
Rebate Fund - used for rebatable arbitrage to the IRS, whenever interest on tax-exempt bond construction funds 
exceeds allowable earnings under IRS arbitrage regulations. 
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Sinking Funds - holds all Agency funds restricted for payment of Agency debt. These consist of the Interest Account, 
Principal Account, and Term Bonds Redemption Account, which are funded annually from revenues and used to 
pay annual debt service, and the Reserve Account, which is funded from bond proceeds and changes with debt issuance 
or redemption.  
Utility Reserve Fund - is for any unexpended funds remaining at the end of a fiscal year. The fund balance is maintained 
at a balance sufficient to meet bond coverage requirements and operating capital needs. The Utility Reserve may be used 
for any lawful purpose relating to the System, including funding of the Rate Stabilization Account.  
 
Financial Management Policies 
The financial management policies are intended as a guide to financial stewardship of Tampa Bay Water. The policies will 
guide essential decisions affecting budget and financial matters to ensure the Agency is financially prepared to meet the 
%RDUG·V LPPHGLDWH DQG ORQJ-term service objectives. 
 
Utility Reserve Fund Policy 

To provide adequate operating capital at all times, Tampa Bay Water shall maintain, at a minimum, a Utility Reserve Fund 
VXIILFLHQW WR FRYHU     RI \HDUO\ EXGJHWHG *URVV 5HYHQXH  DV GHILQHG LQ 7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V ERQG FRYHQDQWV   H[FOXVLYH RI 

revenue from government grants, whether such grants are received for capital improvement or operating purposes. The 
balance in the Utility Reserve Fund shall also be maintained at levels sufficient to ensure that Tampa Bay Water complies with 
its bond covenant requirements including a requirement that Net Revenues plus Fund Balance (unencumbered monies on 
deposit in the Utility Reserve Fund on the preceding September 30th) be equal to or greater than 125% of annual debt service 
coming due in the fiscal year.  A higher coverage may be established by the Board if circumstances warrant such coverage. 

To ensure compliance with Master Water Supply requirements, any Gross Revenues which remain on deposit at the end of 
the fiscal year, and which are not required to pay liabilities existing at the end of the fiscal year (unexpended funds) shall be 
deposited to the Utility Reserve Fund. The Chief Financial Officer will evaluate the adequacy of the Utility Reserve Fund 
balance as it relates to both the current year and the succeeding budget year debt covenant calculations. Monies deposited to 
the Utility Reserve Fund will remain in the Utility Reserve Fund to the extent they are needed to maintain compliance with 
bond covenants and as required by the Utility Reserve Fund Policy. 
 
Rate Stabilization Account Policy 

The purpose of this policy is to assure that revenues collected by the Agency through the Uniform Rate, and which remain 
XQH[SHQGHG DW WKH HQG RI DQ\ ILVFDO \HDU DUH DSSOLHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH $JHQF\·V ERQG FRYHQDQWV DQG WKH 0DVWHU :DWHU 

Supply Contract.   

The bond covenants, section 4.08, permit the transfer into the Rate Stabilization Account such moneys which are on deposit 
in the Utility Reserve Fund as it deems appropriate. The Master Water Supply Contract, section 13C, allows the Agency to 
establish a rate stabilization fund/account and section 13F, provides any unencumbered moneys present at the end of the 
fiscal year shall be budgeted for the succeeding fiscal year and utilized for the same purposes for which rates are charged to 
the member governments. To accomplish this within the constraints imposed by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
and the Bond Covenants, the unencumbered monies must flow from the Utility Reserve Fund to the Rate Stabilization 
Account at year end to be deferred to the year in which they will be used.      

After meeting the Utility Reserve Fund requirements, any additional funds deposited to the Utility Reserve Fund at the end 
of the fiscal year shall be transferred to the Rate Stabilization Account and accounted for as deferred inflows of resources of 
the fiscal year in which the revenues were accrued. Such transfer and accounting must be made no later than 90 days after the 
end of the fiscal year in which the funds were accrued and must be approved by the General Manager. 

The lesser of (a) 3% of budgeted revenue of the year just ended or (b) the dollar amount of encumbrances being carried 
forward or (c) the amount of funds deposited to the Rate Stabilization Account may be applied as Revenue in the first 
succeeding fiscal year, with the approval of the General Manager� such funds are to be used for purposes of funding 
encumbrances carried forward and/or other approved activities.  Encumbrances which exist at the end of the fiscal year just 
ended and which are being funded from the Uniform Rate may also be carried to the first succeeding fiscal year with the 
approval of the General Manager to allow for completion of tasks that were budgeted and approved in the fiscal year just 
ending.   
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Any monies placed in the Rate Stabilization Account in excess of the 3% of budgeted revenue amount will be applied to the 
first succeeding fiscal year either to pay expense of the first succeeding fiscal year for which rates are collected or to remain 
in the Rate Stabilization Account for use in a subsequent year. Any application of these monies in excess of 3% requires 
approval of the Board of Directors. 

To the extent that any monies are utilized from the Rate Stabilization Account to fund expense currently provided for in the 
Uniform Rate, the rate being charged will be modified to take this funding into account. 
 
 
Capital Assets Policy 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for establishing the policies and procedures necessary to provide adequate internal 
control over capital assets.  Policies and procedures shall be approved by the General Manager. Statements of policy shall be 
submitted to the Board of Directors for review. All capital assets acquired by the Agency shall be titled to the Agency and 
recorded in the capital assets records system.  At a minimum, the capital assets records system shall contain the applicable 
information required by regulatory bodies. (Department of Financial Services Rule, Chapter 69I-73).  An annual physical 
inventory of all movable equipment shall be taken under the direction of the finance department and reconciled to the capital 
asset records and general ledger control accounts in accordance with Department of Financial Services Rule, Chapter 69I-73. 
7KH $JHQF\·V FDSLWDOL]DWLRQ WKUHVKROG LV         IROORZLQJ WKH *RYHUQPHQW )LQDQFH 2IILFHUV $VVRFLDWLRQ EHVW SUDFWLFHV   
 
Debt Policy 

7KH $JHQF\·V GHEW SROLF\ SHUPLWV WKH IROORZLQJ   D  LVVXDQFH RI GHEW REOLJDWLRQV RQ EHKDOI RI 7DPSD %D\ :DWHU WR ILQDQFH 

the construction or acquisition of infrastructure and other assets for the purpose of meeting its governing obligations to the 
member governments� (b) issuance of debt obligations to refund outstanding debt when indicated by market conditions of at 
OHDVW D    SUHVHQW YDOXH VDYLQJV RU PDQDJHPHQW FRQVLGHUDWLRQV UHFRPPHQGHG E\ WKH DJHQF\·V ILQDQFLDO DGYLVRU � (c) the debt 
obligations be issued and administered in such a manner as to ensure and sustain the long-term financial integrity of Tampa 
Bay Water, to achieve the highest possible credit rating and to preserve and enhance the quality of the product delivered to 
our members� (d) the debt obligations are FRQVLVWHQW ZLWK WKH %RDUG·V 'HULYDWLYH 3ROLF\� and (e) such debt obligations shall 
not be issued or debt proceeds used to finance current operations of the Agency without specific action of the Board and 
concurrence of the aJHQF\·V %RQG &RXQVHO DV WR WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI WKDW DFWLRQ  

There is no legal limitation on the amount of debt that the Agency can issue. However, the Agency must be able to 
demonstrate that it can repay the debt from the revenues generated from water sales or other approved sources.  It is the 
$JHQF\·V GHVLUH DQG GLUHFWLRQ WR DVVXUH WKDW LWV GHEW REOLJDWLRQV DUH LVVXHG DQG DGPLQLVWHUHG LQ VXFK D PDQQHU WR REWDLQ WKH 

best long-term financial advantage to the agency and there its member governments, while making every effort to maintain 
DQG LPSURYH WKH DJHQF\·V ERQG ratings and reputation in the investment community. 

7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V SURFHGXUHV IRU HIIHFWLYH PDQDJHPHQW RI GHEW DUH DV IROORZV  

x Comply with all debt covenants and requirements of the bond resolutions, and State and Federal laws authorizing and 
governing the issuance and administration of debt obligations. 

x Evaluate potential refinancing of debt when market conditions indicate at least a 3% present value savings.  

x Issue debt obligations when required for financing projects in the Capital Improvement Program and to take 
advantage of refunding opportunities to either help offset the cost of capital projects or to reduce the cost of 
outstanding debt. 

x Maintain favorable bond ratings by effectively communicating the financial condition of Tampa Bay Water to rating 
agencies, bond holders and the public. 

x Utilize cooperative funding through grant programs whenever possible to reduce borrowing. 

x Structure debt service payments to provide for gradual impacts on the uniform rate charged to the member 
governments, with a maximum maturity not to exceed the lesser of the estimated useful life of the project or thirty 
years, but not beyond thirty years in any instance. 
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Investment Policy 

7KH REMHFWLYHV RI WKH $JHQF\·V LQYHVWPHQW SROLF\ DUH VDIHW\ of principal, maintenance of liquidity and return on investment. 
The foremost objective is the safety of principal. The second objective is maintenance of liquidity, so funds are available to 
meet reasonably anticipate cash flow requirements in an orderly manner.  Return on investment is of least importance 
compared to the safety of principal and maintenance of liquidity objectives, but investment portfolios shall be designated 
with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles within the constraints of 
the first two objectives. The investment policy also establishes allowable investments, investment providers, and investment 
concentrations in furtherance of these objectives.  The Agency currently maintains all of its deposit accounts in accounts that 
qualify as Public Deposit accounts as defined by Florida Statutes or have been purchased from Securities Investor Protection 
Corporation (SIPC) brokers/dealers with a long-WHUP LVVXHU UDWLQJ LQ WKH ́ $µ FDWHJRU\ RU KLJKHU IURP ERWK 6WDQGDUG   3RRU·V 

DQG 0RRG\·V 5DWLQJ 6HUYLFHV  
 
Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting Policies 

Tampa Bay Water maintains a system of financial monitoring, control, and reporting for its operations and resources, to 
provide an effective means of ensuring that Agency goals and objectives are met. 

Basis of Accounting and Accounting Systems 

Under Section 17 (D) of the Master Water Supply Contract, the Agency shall maintain accounts and records for all funds 
received and disbursed by it with respect to Water Service.  7KH $JHQF\·V  ILQDQFLDO  UHFRUGV  DQG  WKH DQQXDO  ILQDQFLDO 

statements are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting, consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements applicable to an enterprise fund. In 
addition, the Agency follows the rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida which are applicable to the Agency 
DQG  XWLOL]HV  WKH  6WDWH  RI  )ORULGD  8QLIRUP  $FFRXQWLQJ  6\VWHP   7KH  $JHQF\·V  DFFRXQWLQJ  V\VWHP  DOVR  LQFOXGHV  DQ 

encumbrance system for tracking purchase commitments. 

Auditing 

According to the Master Bond Resolution under Section 5.06 Annual Audit� the Agency shall, after the close of each 
Fiscal Year, cause the books, records and accounts relating to the System to be properly audited by a recognized 
independent firm of certified public accountants. According to the Master Water Supply Contract under Section 17 (D)� 
on or before each March 1 the Agency shall complete an audit of the aforesaid accounts and said audit shall be conducted 
by a nationally recognized certified public accounting firm. The results of this audit are included within WKH $JHQF\·V 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and are reported to the Board upon completion in the subsequent year. The 
$JHQF\·V  LQGHSHQGHQW  DXGLWRUV  DUH  VHOHFWHG  LQ  DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK  WKH $JHQF\·V $XGLWRU  6HOHFWLRQ  3ROLF\  DQG  DSSOLFDEOH 

Florida Statutes.  

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports along with the Popular Annual Financial Reports are available on the 
Tampa Bay Water website, www.tampabaywater.org. 

Performance Audit 

Section 2.10, Article II, Creation and Governance, of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement requires the Agency 
to conduct a performance audit and management study at five-year intervals. The performance audit and management 
VWXG\ UHYLHZV SURJUDP UHVXOW DQG PDNHV UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV UHJDUGLQJ WKH $JHQF\·V JRYHUQDQFH VWUXFWXUH DQG WKH SURSHU  

efficient, and economical operation anG PDLQWHQDQFH RI WKH $JHQF\·V ZDWHU VXSSO\ IDFLOLWLHV  7KH ODWHVW SHUIRUPDQFH DXGLW 

and management study completed was in fiscal year 20   E\ &OLIWRQ/DUVRQ$OOHQ //3  7KH $JHQF\·V VWDII  LV FXUUHQWO\ 

working on implementing the recommendations made by CliftonLarsonAllen LLP.  
 
Capital Improvement Program  

Highlights 

Tampa %D\ :DWHU·V &DSLWDO ,PSURYHPHQW 3URJUDP  &,3  PDLQ REMHFWLYHV DUH  
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x 7R LPSURYH 7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V ILQDQFLDO VWDELOLW\ E\ LGHQWLI\LQJ FDSLWDO QHHGV  HVWLPDWLQJ IXQGLQJ QHHGV LQFOXGLQJ 

future bond issues, and identify the effects on the operating budget�  
x 7R PDLQWDLQ DQG LPSURYH 7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V LQIUDVWUXFWXUH WKURXJK WKH PDLQWHQDQFH  UHSDLU, and replacement of 

existing assets� and 
x Identify and implement short- and long-WHUP  LQIUDVWUXFWXUH  QHHGV SURMHFWV  WR PHHW  WKH  UHJLRQV·  IXWXUH ZDWHU 

demands. 
 
The CIP is a comprehensive ten-year plan and portfolio of previously approved and new proposed capital projects and is 
XSGDWHG DQQXDOO\ DV WKH VFRSH  QHHGV DQG WLPLQJ IRU VSHFLILF SURMHFWV FKDQJH  7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V %RDUG RI 'LUHFWRUV DQQXDOO\ 

accepts the CIP for implementation by agency staff and adopts the upcoming proposed expense when adopting the Annual 
Budget.  The CIP is subject to changes as the needs for specific projects become better defined and final approval of individual 
projects is provided by the Board. Projects receiving funding through the Uniform Rate, the Renewal and Replacement Fund, 
the Energy Savings Fund or the Capital Improvement Fund, the upcoming annual CIP budget is the basis for budgeted 
expense when adopting the upcoming Annual Budget. 

Goals 

The following goals are used by Tampa Bay Water staff to develop the annual capital budget and the Capital Improvement 
Program Plan: 

x Identify and prioritize capital projects through a coordinated departmental effort that integrates planning and 
development, engineering, construction, and financing requirements and future operating and maintenance costs. 

x Develop a timeline and budget for each project. 
x Develop a funding scenario for each project that identifies a funding source, a projected cash flow, and future 

operating and maintenance cost estimates.  
 

Energy Management Program 

Tampa Bay Water developed an Energy Management Program roadmap with a programmatic approach to improve energy 
efficiency through implementation of emerging technology and operational changes. The Energy Roadmap: 
x $OLJQV ZLWK WKH $JHQF\·V 6WUDWHJLF 3ODQ  
x Identifies elements of technology and energy infrastructure to enhance financial stability and sustainability of Tampa Bay 

Water operations� and 
x Identifies gap/key projects necessary to bridge or connect on-going and planned capital projects with the steps and goals 

of the Energy Management Program. 
 

Renewal and Replacement Program 

7DPSD  %D\  :DWHU·V  5HQHZDO  DQG  5HSODFHPHQW  3URJUDP  LQFOXGHV  D  SULRULWL]HG  ORQJ-term plan for renewal, repair, or 
replacement of assets that will result in a sustainable infrastructure. The Program identifies the required projects and their 
timing based on a risk-based approach that considers criticality, remaining useful life, and risk. 
 

Major Goals and Initiatives for Fiscal Year 2023 

The Fiscal Year 2023 budget was put together with important agency policy goals and initiatives in mind. Those goals and 
initiatives included: 

x Meeting the performance requirements of the Master Water Supply Contract to provide high-quality water to our six-
member governments. 

x Operating our water supply facilities to Improve supply delivery while also maintaining full compliance with all regulatory 
permits. 

x Achieving the goals specified in the Agency's 2022-2027 Strategic Plan. 
x Focusing on continually improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the agency's operations through ongoing 

implementation of the asset management program. 
x Addressing key recommendations from the 2020 Performance and Management Audit Report and allocating our staff 

and financial resources to meet the Boards' objectives for a sustainable and affordable water supply system. 
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x Continuing to balance and blend our multiple supplies of water sources to deliver high quality, affordable water to our 
member governments. 

x Examining the agency's use of outside consultants and evaluating staffing needs across the agency to ensure both human 
and fiscal resources are being efficiently allocated.  

x Performing feasibility studies on future water supply projects and completing the future needs analysis to support the 
update of the Long-Term Master Water Plan. 

x Refining the models used to accurately predict the need for new water supplies in the future. 
x Safeguarding the public's investment in the region's water supply and delivery system to ensure that both the water quality 

and water quantity meet the needs of the more than 2.5 million people in our region. Protecting that investment includes: 
o Focusing on the safety and security of our employees and our water supply facilities by preparing and 

exercising procedures and emergency preparedness plans for the staffing and operation of our water 
production facilities in disaster events. 

o Renewing and replacing existing infrastructure to ensure the optimal operation of our facilities over time. 
o Continuing to award community, environmental and educational organizations for projects that promote the 

protection of our drinking water sources through the Source Water Protection Mini-Grant Program. 
x Continuing to develop and implement an employee training and knowledge retention program to address the succession 

planning required over the next several years as long-term employees leave the agency. 

x Expanding the agency's outreach and education program to underscore the importance of a reliable, sustainable water 
supply for economic and regional growth and development. 

x Working with our member governments on the coordination and sharing of utility best management practices. 

x Working with our colleagues around the country in the continuing research into changes in weather patterns and the 
impact of climate change upon the surface water systems serving our area. 

x Maintaining a strong relationship with the Southwest Florida Water Management District, the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection, and other regulatory agencies to ensure open and honest communication on regulatory, 
planning, and financial matters. 

x Participating in the K2i Platform, which brings together utilities from around the world to share best practices and 
strengths to learn from each other.  

 

Planning for the Future 

Long-term Master Water Supply Plan 

Planning for the future is an on-going process at Tampa Bay Water that includes more than potential new supplies. Our long-
term planning process is a comprehensive examination of supply, demand, system hydraulics, water quality, reliability, public 
engagement, conservation and more. 

This 20-\HDU SODQ LV D IUDPHZRUN IRU PHHWLQJ WKH UHJLRQ·V IXWXUH GULQNLQJ ZDWHU QHHGV  7KH /RQJ-term Master Water Plan 
identifies future water needs and potential water supply projects that could be designed and built to meet those needs for the 
region. ThH SODQ  ZKLFK ZDV LQVWDWHG LQ       LV XSGDWHG HYHU\ ILYH \HDUV  HDFK XSGDWH PXVW EH DSSURYHG E\ WKH $JHQF\·V 

board of directors.  

The planning process includes data from a comprehensive demand forecasting model that helps us predict future water 
demands by analyzing water use data, weather, demographic, and economic data. Our Demand Management Plan quantifies 
potential water savings from passive and active conservation efforts. Planning for dry times is also part of the process. 
Operational and supply uncertainty is forecasted and modeled, to help understand how to mitigate and manage that risk. 

Altogether, these models and plans forecast how much water will be needed in the future and when, so we can plan new 
supplies at the right time to keep our region growing and thriving. Projections show the Tampa Bay region will need an 
additional 10 million gallons per day (mgd) by 2028 and another 10 to 20 mgd by 2033. 

,Q $XJXVW       WKH $JHQF\·V ERDUG RI GLUHFWRUV YRWHG WR H[SDQG WKH 7DPSD %D\ 5HJLRQDO 6XUIDFH :DWHU 7UHDWPHQW 3ODQW  

7KH H[SDQVLRQ LQFUHDVHV WKH SODQW·V DYHUDJH SURGXFWLRQ E\    PJG WR PHHW      UHJLRQDO GHPDQGV   This project is currently 
under design and  its selection marked the close of the 2018 Long-term Master Water Plan planning cycle and the 2023 
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planning cycle kicked off in October 2022. Projects from previous Long-term Master Water Plans, which all include public 
input, and ideas from Tampa Bay Water and its member governments were considered in the 2023 planning cycle. 

The 2023 Long-term Master Water Plan update was approved by the  $JHQF\·V ERDUG RI GLUHFWRUV LQ November 2023. This 
updated plan recommended the evaluation of seven water supply concepts for further feasibility in a 3-year Feasibility 
Program.   

 
South Hillsborough County Water Supply Projects 

Southern Hillsborough County is experiencing rapid development and growth that is driving demand for more drinking water. 
This year we continued to implement solutions to bring more water to fast-growing southern Hillsborough County. These 
solutions include: 
 

x Installed temporary pumps at the Brandon Booster Station site, sending up to 5 million gallons per day of more water 
WR +LOOVERURXJK &RXQW\·V /LWKLD :DWHU 7UHDWPHQW 3ODQW ZKLOH ZH EXLOG WKH SHUPDQHQW ERRVWHU VWDWLRQ� the permanent 
booster station started operational testing in January 2024. The permanent Brandon Booster Station can send an 
additional 5-  PJG WR +LOOVERURXJK &RXQW\·V /LWKLD :DWHU 7UHDWPHQW 3ODQW   

x 7KH $JHQF\·V ERDUG RI GLUHFWRUV DSSURYHG WKH route for segments A and B of the new South Hillsborough Pipeline 
to deliver up to an additional 65 mgd of water to Hillsborough County by 2028. Segment A of the pipeline will connect 
7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V UHJLRQDO ZDWHU SODQW LQ %UDQGRQ WR WKH &RXQW\·V /LWKLD :DWHU 7UHDWPHQW 3ODQW  RIIering system 
redundancy between these two facilities in addition to more water. Segment B will branch out from Segment A and 
end at a new point of connection in south Hillsborough.  ThLV SURMHFW LV FXUUHQWO\ XQGHU GHVLJQ   7KH $JHQF\·V ERDUG 

of directors also contracted with a Construction Manager at Risk to provide preconstruction services. 

x Permitted the conversion of a test well in South Hillsborough County to a production well at an average annual 
quantity of 2.3 mgd. Tampa Bay Water is designing the well infrastructure and working with Hillsborough County on 
their transmission main and water treatment system to directly deliver the water to customers in this service area. 

x Tampa Bay Water is negotiating with a landowner in South Hillsborough County to acquire unneeded permit capacity 
(590,100 gallons per day) as their property partially converts from agriculture to residential land use.  The water can 
be transferred to a Tampa Bay Water permit on the Balm Farm and used as a future potable water supply source. 

x Tampa Bay Water is working to acquire a Water Use Permit from Hillsborough County and transfer the quantity to 
increase the average quantity at the South-Central Hillsborough Regional Wellfield.  This permit modification should 
occur in late 2024 and yield approximately 1 mgd additional water supply for South Hillsborough County. 

 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 

Christina Sackett - Chief Financial Officer 
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Tampa Bay Water·s Board of Directors as of September 30, 2023 

Tampa Bay Water is often cited as a model of regional cooperation, thanks to the spirit of regionalism that created the utility and 
the continual regional efforts of our board of directors. Each elected official on our nine-member board represents an individual 
city or county that we serve but, at the dais, each also represents the Tampa Bay region. The policy decisions and directives of our 
board ensure our region has adequate and sustainable drinking water to support our economy, environment and way of life. 
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Tampa Bay Water 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR¶S REPORT 
 

 
To the Board of Directors of 

Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority 
Clearwater, Florida 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Opinions 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority 
(the ³Agency´), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Agency¶s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the Agency as of September 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor¶s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating 
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency¶s ability to continue as a going concern for 
12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial 
doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor¶s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor¶s report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

 
1401 MANATEE AVENUE WEST, SUITE 1200 � BRADENTON, FLORIDA 34205 � 941�747�4483 � FAX 941�747�6035 � www.mjcpa.com 

MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
we: 

x Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
x Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, 
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

x Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Agency¶s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

x Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

x Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Agency¶s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control�related matters that we identified 
during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management¶s Discussion 
and Analysis (on pages 28 through 40), the Schedule of Agency Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ± 
Florida Retirement System, the Schedule of Agency Contributions ± Florida Retirement System, the Schedule of 
Agency Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ± Health Insurance Subsidy Program, the Schedule of Agency 
Contributions ± Health Insurance Subsidy Program, and the Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and 
Related Ratios ± Other Post�Employment Benefits Plan (on pages 98 through 104) be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Agency¶s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information noted as the Schedule of Debt 
Service Coverage ± Utility System Revenue Bonds Series 2001A, 2005, 2011, 2011A, 2013, 2015A, 2015B, 2016A, 
2016B, 2016C, and 2020 Master Bond, as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information as listed in the table of 
contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises 
the introductory section, budgetary comparison schedule for fiscal year 2023 and statistical section but does not 
include the basic financial statements and our auditor¶s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements 
do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or 
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that 
an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 16, 2024, on our 
consideration of the Agency¶s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency¶s internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 
 

Bradenton, Florida 
February 16, 2024 
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

This section of Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority’s (the Agency) annual financial
report presents management’s analysis of the Agency’s financial performance during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2023. Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements, which follow this
section.

Financial Highlights 

 The Agency owns and operates facilities having a net book value of $1.47 billion to provide 
water to its six Member Governments. Financial data for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2023, reflects the Agency’s operations and maintenance of its existing facilities, as well as the 
development of new facilities to meet the region’s future water needs. The facilities operating in 
2023 included 13 wellfield systems, the Seawater Desalination Facility and Enhanced Surface 
Water System. The Enhanced Surface Water System is comprised of Regional Surface Water 
Treatment Plant, High Service Pumping Station, Tampa Bypass Canal Pump Station and 
Pipeline, Alafia River Intake and Pump Station, and C.W. Bill Young Regional Reservoir. 
Additionally, operating facilities include Cypress Creek Pump Station, Keller Hydrogen Sulfide 
Treatment Facility and Lithia Hydrogen Sulfide Treatment Facility, as well as various booster 
stations, water treatment facilities, and approximately 270 miles of collection mains and large-
diameter potable water transmission mains. The Agency also has administrative, laboratory, and 
infrastructure management facilities in Cypress Creek and an administrative facility in 
Clearwater. The Agency is focused on the efficient and cost-effective management of this 
integrated system through improved processes, use of new technologies, and appropriate 
staffing.

 The Agency’s net position increased $34.4 million or 3.82% in fiscal 2023.

 Increased water demand from its six members resulted in an increase in water production from 
188.3 mgd in 2022 to 202.2 mgd in 2023. The increase in demand is largely a result of the 
continuing growth in South Hillsborough County and Pasco County.

 During 2023, the Agency’s revenue from water sales was $187.1 million. In addition, $1.2 million 
in revenue was utilized from the Rate Stabilization Account in accordance with contractual 
obligations with the Agency’s members and Agency accounting policies, resulting in a net 
increase in revenue recognized of $13.6 million from 2022 to 2023.

 The Agency’s operating expense increased by $14.3 million, or 16.7%, from 2022 to 2023 as 
a result of an increase in demand and increased prices.

29



Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of two parts: management’s discussion and analysis of the financial
statements plus the financial statements. The financial statements also include notes that explain the
information contained in the financial statements in greater detail.

Required Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Agency use accounting methods similar to those used by private sector
companies. The statement of net position includes all of the Agency’s assets and deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and provides information about the nature
and amounts of investment in resources (assets) and the obligations to Agency creditors (liabilities). The
assets and liabilities are presented in a classified format, which distinguishes between current and
noncurrent assets and liabilities. Current assets are those assets expected to be converted to cash or
used to pay current liabilities within 12 months. Current liabilities are those expected to be paid within
12 months. Conversely, noncurrent assets and liabilities are those expected to extend beyond a 12-
month period. The statement of net position also provides the basis for computing the rate of return,
evaluating the capital structure of the Agency, and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the
Agency. 

All of the current year’s revenues and expense are accounted for in the statement of revenues, expense,
and changes in net position. This statement reports information about the Agency’s activities and
measures the success of the Agency’s operations over the past year.

The final required financial statement is the statement of cash flows. The primary purpose of this
statement is to provide information about the Agency’s sources and uses of cash during the reporting
period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from
operating, investing, and financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where cash
came from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting
period.

In addition, the annual report includes required supplementary information related to pensions and
other post-employment benefits as required by GASB.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency 

Our analysis of the Agency begins with a measure of the Agency’s financial position or financial health
by reporting its assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources and the difference between them, as “net position.” Over time, increases or decreases in the
Agency’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.
However, other nonfinancial factors such as new water supply facilities, water demand, economic
conditions, population growth, state and federal regulation, and changes in government legislation must
also be considered in evaluating the Agency’s financial health. Consideration also needs to be given to
the terms of the Agency’s agreements with its members under which water rates are established based
on budgeted operating and capital costs, as well as certain reserve requirements. The statement of
revenues, expense, and changes in net position provides information that is useful in evaluating
whether the Agency has successfully recovered all its costs through its water rates and other charges, as
well as its credit worthiness.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

Net Position  

A summary of the Agency’s statements of net position is presented in Table A-1.
Table A-1

Condensed Statements of Net Position
(In Millions of Dollars)

FY 2023 FY 2022
Assets
Unrestricted current assets $ 88.9 $ 88.7
Restricted current assets 250.9 105.6
Capital assets, net 1,470.8 1,475.2
Noncurrent assets 97.2 117.6
Total assets $ 1,907.8 $ 1,787.1
Deferred outflows of resources
Refunding of debt $ 3.2 $ 10.3
FRS 3.4 3.8
HIS 0.4 0.6
Total deferred outflows of resources $ 7.0 $ 14.7
Liabilities
Liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 822.4 $ 752.0
Other liabilities 107.3 98.0
Total liabilities $ 929.7 $ 850.0
Deferred inflows of resources
Rate stabilization $ 50.2 $ 51.4
HIS 0.7 0.6
Total deferred inflows of resources $ 50.9 $ 52.0
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets $ 774.7 $ 752.2
Restricted 132.0 114.8
Unrestricted 27.5 32.8
Total net position $ 934.2 $ 899.8

As shown in table A-1, total net position increased $34.4 million, or 3.82%, to $934.2 million in fiscal
2023 from $899.8 million in fiscal 2022. 
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

Change in Net Position  

Table A-2
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

(In Millions of Dollars)

FY 2023 FY 2022

Operating revenue $ 188.3 $ 174.7
Operating expense (100.2) (85.9)
Operating income before depreciation 88.1 88.8
Depreciation and amortization expense (29.4) (29.1)
Operating income 58.7 59.7
Investment revenue, net of realized and unrealized gain (loss)

of $1.8 and $(9.4) in 2023 and 2022, respectively 11.2 (6.6)
Interest expense, gross (34.0) (29.6)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (7.2) (1.2)
Income before contributions 28.7 22.3
Capital contributions 5.7 0.9
Change in net position 34.4 23.2
Total net position - beginning 899.8 876.6
Total net position - ending $ 934.3 $ 899.8

Table A-2 reflects the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and provides
information as to the nature and source of these changes.

As shown in Table A-2, the net position increased in 2023 from 2022 by $34.5 million, or 3.82%.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

As illustrated in the following charts, total water sales billed to Member Governments under the
Uniform Rate was $186.6 million in 2023 compared to $179.2 million in 2022. Demand increased by
7.38% to 202.2 mgd (millions of gallons per day) in 2023 from 188.3 mgd in 2022 to. The  increase in
demand is largely a result of the continuing growth in South Hillsborough County and Pasco County.

Amounts billed under the Uniform Rate differ from the total revenue from water sales by the amount
of other water utility revenue, operating grants and largely the water sales revenue from the Tampa
Bypass Canal.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

The Agency's operating expenses increased by $14.3 million or 16.7% from 2022 to 2023. This results 
from a $7.8 million increase in variable expenses due to increased demands and an increase in costs for 
chemicals and electricity. An increase of $4.2 million in personnel services, resulting mostly from an 
increase in the GASB 68 retirement expenses requirement. An increase of $5.4 million in repairs and 
maintenance, due to increased costs and replacement of parts at various agency facilities.

Investment revenue increased by $17.8 million from 2022 to 2023. The Agency continues to work with 
its Investment Advisors to diversify the Agency's investment portfolio helping the Agency earn more in 
investment revenue.

Interest expense increased $4.4 million in 2023 of which $3.6 million was due to an increase in the 
interest on bond payments.  

Gain or loss on disposal of capital assets consists of the net gain or loss from sale or disposal of 
obsolete, damaged, or surplus equipment and property and the write-off of costs of discontinued 
projects. In 2023 the net loss is $7.2 million. 
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

Capital Assets and Long-term Debt  

The Agency has a net investment of $1,470.8 million and $1,475.2 million at September 30, 2023, and
2022, respectively, in a broad range of infrastructure, including wellfields, water treatment and pumping
facilities, transmission mains, buildings, a reservoir, other maintenance and administration equipment,
and water capacity rights as shown in Table A-3. 

Table A-3
Capital Assets

(In Millions of Dollars)
FY 2023 FY 2022

Land and improvements $ 83.3 $ 82.5
Wells and wellfield improvements 137.7 135.3
Water treatment and pumping facilities 708.5 706.1
Transmission mains 339.2 339.2
Buildings 21.9 21.8
Reservoir 304.6 304.6
Other equipment and software 25.9 23.2

1,621.1 1,612.7
Accumulated depreciation 531.4 502.5
Capital assets, depreciable, net 1,089.7 1,110.2

Water capacity rights 316.4 316.4
Construction-in-progress

Transmission mains 0.5 1.2
Surface water sources and pumping facilities 23.9 13.4
Wellfields and improvements 24.6 14.2
Desalination facilities 8.0 11.9
Other supply and infrastructure 7.7 7.9

64.7 48.6
$ 1,470.8 $ 1,475.2

More information about the Agency’s capital assets is disclosed in the Notes to Financial Statements
under note 9, title Capital Assets. 

Agency's management decided to include the water capacity rights as part of capital assets to follow
Government Accounting Standard Boards best practices.
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Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

Capital Assets and Long-term Debt (continued)  

The Agency has several projects in various stages of development to improve or expand existing
facilities and to meet future demand for water. In 2023, construction-in-progress increased by $16.1
over 2022.

Bond Ratings Limitations of Debt

Agency ratings from Moody’s,
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch are Aa1,
AA+, and AA, respectively. The
outstanding bonds for Series 2001A
and 2005 bonds carry insurance with
National Public Finance Guarantee
Corp. The Series 2011, 2015A, 2015B,
2016A, 2016B, 2016C, Master Bond
2020, and 2022 Bonds bonds do not
carry insurance. 

Bond covenants allow for the issuance of
additional debt, on parity, as to lien, on the net
revenues of the Agency provided certain net
earnings ratios are met. The major criteria are (1)
that the net revenues (as defined in the
covenants) for any 12 consecutive months
selected by the issuer, of the 24 months
immediately preceding the issuance of the
additional bonds, together with the fund balance
(as defined in the covenants) on the last day of
such 12-month period, were equal to at least
125% of the debt service on the outstanding
bonds during such 12-month period and (2) the
net revenues for such 12-month period were
equal to at least 100% of (a) the debt service due
on the outstanding bonds for the 12-month
period, (b) any required deposit to the Renewal
and Replacement Fund, and (c) any required
deposit to the Reserve Fund. The Agency is in
compliance with all required financial and
nonfinancial debt covenants.

37



Tampa Bay Water
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

Table A-4
Cost of Capital

(In Millions)

Debt
Balance

Average
Coupon
Rate %

2001A bonds $ 50.0 5.93
2005 bonds 51.0 5.50
2015A bonds 180.8 4.09
2015B bonds 89.6 3.14
2016A bonds 96.6 4.40
2016B bonds 31.2 3.52
2016C bonds 55.3 5.00
Master Bond 2020 Tranche 1 6.4 2.31
Master Bond 2020 Tranche 2 31.3 2.31
Master Bond 2020 Tranche 3 76.2 2.31
2022 Bonds 122.1 5.06

$ 790.5

Under the Agency’s budgetary process, rates are established to provide adequate coverage for existing
and planned additional debt. This is demonstrated by the Agency’s debt service coverage ratios, which
are 1.50 and 1.61 at September 30, 2023, and 2022, respectively. These coverage ratios are another
indicator of the Agency’s financial strength and future borrowing capability.
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Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

Table A-5
Debt Coverage Ratio
(In Millions of Dollars)

FY 2023 FY 2022
Revenue from sales $ 188.3 $ 174.7
Less: Purchase price amortization credit (10.2) (10.2)
Investment revenue (Note 1) 3.3 2.3
Total revenue 181.4 166.8
Operation and maintenance expense (Note 2) (104.4) (87.8)
Net revenue for coverage calculation $ 77.0 $ 79.0

Total debt service on bonds $ 72.3 $ 67.9

Debt service and reserve coverage (times) 1.07 1.16
Fund balance  (Note 3) $ 31.3 $ 30.8
Net revenue plus fund balance $ 108.3 $ 109.8

Debt service coverage (times) 1.50 1.61

Note 1: Investment revenue does not include interest on construction and capital project funds
of $5.6 million and $0.0 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively, or unrealized
investment gain of $2.2 million in 2023 and unrealized loss of $8.8 million in 2022.

Note 2: Operation and maintenance expense includes capital expense for improvement of the
existing system of $3.4 million and $1.9 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

Note 3: Fund balance is defined by the Master Bond Resolution and is calculated as of the prior
year-end in accordance with the Master Bond Resolution.

More information about the Agency’s Long-Term Debt is disclosed in the Notes to Financial
Statements under note 11, title Long-Term Debt and Other Noncurrent Liabilities.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Agency (continued) 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates  

The Agency’s rate structure consists of a fixed cost portion to ensure funding of necessary activities and
debt service and a variable cost portion to provide funding for costs, which fluctuate directly with
production.

The Agency’s Board of Directors and management considered many factors when developing the
annual budget and setting the fiscal year water rates (Uniform Rate). These factors include the
estimated demands provided by the Agency’s Member Governments, which in turn consider such
factors as anticipated population growth, environmental conditions, and the economy of the region as a
whole. Budgeted demand for fiscal year 2024 is 197.7 million gallons per day, which is an incrase of 0.2
million gallons per day over the fiscal year 2023 budgeted demand. The 2024 budgeted expense
increased by $7.3 million, or 3.82%. The main reason for the increase in budgeted expenses is due to
increases costs in chemicals and electricty. The budgeted Uniform Rate for 2024 is $2.5989 per
thousand gallons, which is an increase of 0.01% .

The Agency uses surveys of its Member Governments and local employment market rates when
establishing its job classifications and pay plan. These indicators were also taken into consideration
when adopting the Agency budget for fiscal year 2024.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Agency’s finances for those
having an interest therein. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer at 2575
Enterprise Road, Clearwater, FL, 33763. Information about the Agency is also available on its website
at www.tampabaywater.org.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2023
Assets
Current Assets:

Unrestricted current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 64,038,067
Accounts receivable from sale of water 11,896,082
Interest receivable 1,006,470
Investments 10,583,433
Inventories 1,099,076
Other accounts receivable 250,624
Other current assets 43,609

Total unrestricted assets 88,917,361

Restricted current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 190,356,070
Investments 56,599,751
Grants receivable 3,984,907

Total restricted assets 250,940,728
Total current assets 339,858,089

Noncurrent assets
Investments, unrestricted 19,859,640
Investments, restricted 77,334,603
Capital assets, non-depreciable 461,106,465
Capital assets, depreciable, net 1,009,668,864
Bond insurance costs, net of accumulated amortization 39,914

Total noncurrent assets 1,568,009,486
Total assets 1,907,867,574

Deferred outflows of resources
Refunding of debt 3,240,710
FRS 3,392,661
HIS 383,880
Total deferred outflows of resources 7,017,251
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 1,914,884,826

Continued on next page.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Statement of Net Position (continued)

September 30, 2023
Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 12,861,096
Credits due to customers 3,221,983
Lease Liability 452,080
Accrued Interest Payable-SBITA 21,045

Total current liabilities 16,556,204
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets

Construction funds accounts payable 5,015,362
Accrued interest payable 16,107,210
Current portion of long-term debt 49,896,250

Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets 71,018,822
Total Current Liabilities 87,575,026
Noncurrent liabilities:

Long-term debt, net of current portion 822,403,488
Total other post-employment benefits liability 367,110
Net pension liability - FRS 12,241,602
Net pension liability - HIS 5,361,525
Lease Liability 1,757,657

Total noncurrent liabilities 842,131,383
Total liabilities 929,706,409

Deferred inflows of resources
Rate stabilization 50,220,442
Deferred Lease Revenue 57,876
FRS 18,734
HIS 633,204
Total deferred inflows of resources 50,930,256

Continued on next page.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Statement of Net Position (continued)

September 30, 2023
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 774,701,139
Restricted:

Debt Service Interest and Principal Sinking Fund 41,891,000
Renewal and Replacement Fund 25,710,196
Capital Improvement Fund 24,124,712
Operations & Maintenance Reserve 5,304,024
Released Debt Service Fund 21,809,838
Energy Savings Fund 1,065,460
Grants Receivable 3,984,907
Desal - Reserves 4,171,362
SWTP - Reserves 3,861,783
Hillsborough County JPA Fund 74,814

Unrestricted 27,548,926
Total net position $ 934,248,161

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Revenue from sale of water $ 187,134,890
Rate stabilization transfer 1,150,542
Total operating revenue 188,285,432

Operating expense (100,161,602)
Operating income before depreciation 88,123,830

Depreciation and amortization expense (29,425,572)
Operating income 58,698,258

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income, gross 11,189,485
Interest expense, gross (33,983,035)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (7,177,043)
Litigation and insurance recoveries 12,682

Total nonoperating expenses, net (29,957,911)
Income before contributions 28,740,347
Capital contributions 5,649,978

Change in net position 34,390,325
Total net position – beginning 899,857,836
Total net position – ending $ 934,248,161

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Operating activities
Receipts from customers $ 198,318,877
Payments for goods and services (77,045,824)
Payments to employees (20,194,177)
Net cash provided by operating activities 101,078,876

Capital and related financing activities
Capital contributions 2,113,374
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (29,238,614)
Proceeds from disposition of capital assets 169,208
Insurance Recovery 12,682

  Proceeds from issuance on capital and other long-term debt 122,075,000
Proceeds from premium issuance on capital and other long-term debt 9,043,101
Principal paid on capital and other long-term debt (48,047,447)
Interest paid on capital and other long-term debt (36,829,018)
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 19,298,286

Investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 40,923,642
Purchase of investments (44,587,735)
Interest received on investments 8,945,346
Net cash provided by investing activities 5,281,253

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 125,658,415
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 128,735,722
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 254,394,137

Continued on next page.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities

Operating income $ 58,698,258
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 29,425,572
Rate stabilization transfer (1,150,542)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 9,931,681
Inventories (117,160)
Other current assets 89,264
Deferred outflows related to pension 600,852
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (105,964)
Credits due to customers 1,281,243
Net pension liability 2,392,906
Net OPEB Liability 6,236
Deferred inflows related to lease revenue (28,938)
Deferred inflows related to pension 55,468

Total adjustments 42,380,618
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 101,078,876

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
  Right to use asset acquisition funded via lease (1,285,326)
  Net unrealized gain 1,820,018

$ 534,692

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

1. Organization 

Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority (the Agency), formerly West Coast Regional Water
Supply Authority (the Predecessor Authority), was created on October 25, 1974, by enabling state legislation
under Florida Statute Sections 163.01, 373.713, and 373.715. Hillsborough, Pasco, and Pinellas counties and
the cities of St. Petersburg, Tampa, and New Port Richey comprise the Member Governments of the
Agency. A governance study was adopted by the Florida Legislature in 1997 (the 1997 Legislation) that
amended Section 373.1963, Florida Statutes.

As part of the 1997 Legislation, the Agency was created by the Interlocal Agreement and entered into the
Master Water Supply Contract with its Member Governments. The term of the Interlocal Agreement
expires on the later of the fortieth anniversary of the commencement date or the date on which no
obligations remain outstanding pursuant to the Financing Documents. In September 2022, the Agency's
Board of Directors approved the Supplemental Bond Resolution #2022-002 to issue fixed rate revenue
bonds with a final maturity on October 1, 2052. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement and Master Water Supply Contract:

 The Agency will charge a uniform per-gallon wholesale rate to Member Governments for the wholesale
supply of drinking water, with one exception for the City of Tampa. The Agency will charge a separate
rate to the City of Tampa for water delivered from the Tampa Bypass Canal.

 All Member Governments relinquished to the Agency their individual rights to develop drinking water
supplies subject to certain exceptions as defined in the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement.

 The Agency has the absolute and unequivocal obligation to meet the quality water needs of the Member
Governments as defined in the Master Water Supply Contract.

 The Member Governments are required to maintain and collect such rates or other charges for the use
of the products, services, and facilities of the respective members’ water utility systems to the extent
necessary to fund the timely payment of their respective obligations and liabilities under the Master
Water Supply Contract.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Operating Revenue and Expense 

The Agency considers all revenue and expense associated with the delivery of water to customers to be
operating activities. All other revenue and expense are considered to be nonoperating activities.

Net Position 

Net position is classified into three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets or related debt are also included in this component of net position. If there
are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at the end of the reporting
period, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources attributable to the unspent amount is not
included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Instead, that portion of the debt or deferred
inflows of resources is included in the same net position component as the unspent proceeds.

Restricted  – This component consists of net position whose use is subject to external constraints (such as
through debt covenants) by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position – This component consists of net position elements that do not meet the definition
of restricted or net investment in capital assets.

When the Agency incurs an expenditure where it can use both restricted and unrestricted funds the agency
will first use restricted funds. 

The accounting policies and practices of the Agency conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States applicable to an enterprise fund of a government unit.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The Agency is accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and uses the accrual
basis of accounting in the preparation of its annual financial statements. The accounting and reporting
policies of the Agency conform to the accounting rules prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). 
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued) 

Under the provisions of the Agency’s Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement and the Master Water
Supply Contract, the Agency establishes a single uniform rate for sale of quality water to Member
Governments, provided, however, that a separate rate is established for sale of water from the Tampa
Bypass Canal to the City of Tampa. The rate to be charged in a fiscal year to the Member Governments for
water may include the following components as defined by the agreements: (1) operation, maintenance, and
administrative costs; (2) debt service charges; (3) renewal and replacement charges; (4) bond coverage costs;
(5) capital improvement charges; and (6) operating reserve funds. The Agency may also establish a rate
stabilization fund to be funded from the operation, maintenance, and administrative costs or operating
reserve funds. This method of rate setting results in costs being included in the determination of rates in
different periods than when these costs are recognized for financial statement purposes.

The Agency capitalizes certain costs or defers certain revenue since its rates are established by its Board in
accordance with the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement and Master Water Supply Contract, rates
are designed to recover Agency costs, and the Agency can reasonably expect to collect such rates.

Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of net position and the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined
as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
have original maturities of 90 days or less.

Investments 

Investments are reported at fair value in the statement of net position, except for money market funds and
U.S. government obligations with original maturities of less than one year, which are reported at amortized
cost as permitted by GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for
External Investment Pools as amended by GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.
All changes in the fair value of investments are recognized as gains or losses in the statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position.

Deferred Outflow/Inflow of Resources 

The Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for Deferred Outflow of Resources and Deferred
Inflow of Resources. Deferred Outflow of Resources represents the usage of net assets applicable to future
periods and will be recognized as expenditures in the future period to which it applies. Currently, the items
in this category include Deferred Loss on Debt Refunding and Deferred Outflow of Resources related to
pensions and OPEB. The Deferred Loss on Debt Refunding is the difference between the carrying value of
refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life
of the refunded or refunding debt.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Deferred Outflow/Inflow of Resources (continued) 

Deferred Outflow of Resources related to pensions includes the difference between expected and actual
experience regarding economic or demographic factors, as well as changes in actuarial assumptions. Both
are amortized over the average expected remaining service lives of all employees (in years). Employer
contributions to pension plans made subsequent to the measurement date are also deferred and reduce
pension liability in the subsequent year. Deferred Outflow of Resources related to OPEB includes benefit
payments made on behalf of employees subsequent to the measurement date that are deferred and reduce
the OPEB liability in the subsequent year. Deferred Outflow of Resources related to OPEB also includes
changes in actuarial assumptions, which are amortized over the average expected remaining service lives of
all employees (in years).

Deferred Inflow of Resources represents the acquisition of net position applicable to future periods and will
be recognized as income in the future period to which it applies. Currently, the items in this category include
Deferred Inflow of Resources related to pensions and OPEB. The Deferred Inflow of Resources related to
pensions arise from differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments (gains)
or losses. This amount is deferred and amortized over 5 years. The Deferred Inflow of Resources related to
pensions also includes changes in actuarial assumptions. This amount is deferred and amortized over the
average expected remaining service lives of all employees (in years). Deferred inflow of Resources related to
OPEB includes the difference between expected and actual experience regarding economic or demographic
factors, as well as changes in actuarial assumptions. Both are amortized over the average expected remaining
service lives of all employees (in years).

Materials and Supplies Inventories 

Materials and supplies inventories consist primarily of spare parts and are stated at the average cost. Average
cost approximates the first-in, first-out method.
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Capital Assets 

It is the Agency’s policy to capitalize property and equipment having an original cost in excess of $5,000 and
a useful life longer than one year, except for computer software, which is capitalized when the original cost
exceeds $25,000. Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Life in Years

Land improvements 10–99
Buildings 20–50
Wells and wellfield improvements 5–75
Water treatment and pumping facilities 10–50
Transmission mains 14–75
Right to use lease assets 3-40
Reservoir 100
Other equipment and software 3–20

Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are charged to expense as incurred. Expenditures that materially
increase value, increase capacity, or extend useful lives are capitalized. Capital assets are removed (net of
accumulated depreciation) upon retirement or disposition. Related gains or losses are charged to
nonoperating activities.

Water Capacity Rights 

Water capacity rights represent the Agency’s rights in certain wholesale water supply wellfields. The Agency
accounts for the water capacity rights in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 51,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets. This statement requires that indefinite-lived intangible
assets not be amortized, but instead be tested for impairment at least annually and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Water capacity rights are
combined with other non-depreciable capital assets. The Agency follows the follow Government
Accounting Standard Boards best practices and includes the water capacity rights as part of capital assets.
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September 30, 2023

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Impairment of Capital Assets and Insurance Recoveries 

The Agency accounts for impairment of capital assets and insurance recoveries in accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for
Insurance Recoveries. This statement requires that capital assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the service utility of the asset has declined significantly and
unexpectedly. Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used are reported at the lower of carrying value
or fair value. Impairment losses on capital assets that will continue to be used are measured using the
method that best reflects the diminished service utility of the asset: restoration cost approach, service units
approach, or deflated depreciated replacement cost approach. Insurance recoveries related to impairment
losses are netted against the impairment loss if received in the same year; otherwise the recovery is reported
as revenue in the year received. No impairment losses were recognized in 2023.

Capitalization of Interest 

As of Fiscal Year 2019, interest costs incurred as part of the cost of constructing capital assets are no longer
capitalized with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred Before the
End of a Construction Period.

Bond Issuance Costs, Bond Discounts, and Bond Premiums 

The Agency accounts for bond issuance costs in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No.
65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Bond issuance costs (related to insurance) are recorded as
deferred charges, whereas bond discounts and premiums are recorded as a reduction of, or addition to, the
face amount of bonds payable. All other bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred. Amortization of
bond issuance costs, bond discounts, and bond premiums is calculated over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method and is reported as a component of interest expense.

Unamortized Losses on Debt Refunding 

Losses resulting from current or advance refunding's of debt are deferred and amortized over the shorter of
the life of the new debt or the remaining life of the old debt and are reported as deferred outflows of
resources in accordance with GASB Statement No. 65. The amount amortized is reported as a component
of interest expense.

Commitments and Contingencies 

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties, and other
sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably
estimated.
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(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Rate Stabilization 

Under the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement and the Master Water Supply Contract, the Board
of Directors may establish rates sufficient to fund a Rate Stabilization Account. The contracts also provide
that funds collected in any year in excess of current costs may be deposited to the Rate Stabilization
Account with Board approval. Funds placed in the Rate Stabilization Account are accounted for as deferred
inflows of resources until the year in which the Board of Directors approves their use to meet current costs
of the Agency.

Capital Contributions 

Capital contributions represent capital grants from the Southwest Florida Water Management District
(SWFWMD). Contributions are recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements of the grant have
been met, pursuant to GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.
The Agency had $5,649,978 in capital contributions during the year ended September 30, 2023.

Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues 

The Agency provides disclosure of pledged revenues in accordance with the requirements of GASB
Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future
Revenue, which establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for transactions in which a
government receives, or is entitled to, resources in exchange for future cash flows generated by collecting
specific receivables or specific future revenues. The Agency has no sales or pledges of receivables and future
revenues except as discussed in Note 11.

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, the information about the fiduciary net position of the
Florida Retirement System (FRS) and additions to/deductions from FRS Pension Plan and Health
Insurance Subsidy Program (HIS) fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by FRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Pension plan investments are
reported at fair value.

Leases and Suscription Based Information Technology Arrangements 

The Agency is a lessee for noncancellable leases of land and equipment and is a party to subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITA). The Agency recognizes a lease liability and SBITA liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) and SBITA asset in the financial statements. The
Agency recognizes lease and SBITA liabilities with an initial, individual value of $5,000 or more. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Leases and Suscription Based Information Technology Arrangements (continued) 

At the commencement of a lease and SBITA contract, the Agency initially measures the liability at the
present value of payments expected to be made during the lease and SBITA contract term. Subsequently,
the liability is reduced by the principal portion of payments made. The lease asset and SBITA asset are
initially measured as the initial amount of the lease and SBITA liability, adjusted for lease payments made at
or before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset and
SBITA asset are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease and SBITA contract,
respectively.

Key estimates and judgments related to leases and SBITA contracts include how the Agency determines (1)
the discount rate it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease and SBITA
contract term, and (3) payments

The lease and SBITA contract term includes the noncancellable period only. Payments included in the
measurement of the liability are comprised of fixed payments and any purchase option price that the Agency
is reasonably certain to exercise. In determining the lease and SBITA contract term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise
a termination option. Extension options are only included in the term if the lease or SBITA contract  is
reasonably certain to be extended.

The Agency monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement and will remeasure the
lease and SBITA  asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the
amount of the liability.

Right-to-use lease and SBITA assets are reported with other capital assets and lease and SBITA contract
liabilities are reported with long-term debt on the statement of net position.

Payments due under these contracts may include fixed payments plus variable payments. For equipment
leases for which the Agency has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components, maintenance
services are provided by the lessor at a fixed cost and are included in the fixed lease payments.
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Leases and Suscription Based Information Technology Arrangements (continued) 
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease and SBITA contract are initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease and SBITA contract liabilities include the net present value of the following payments:

 Fixed payments (including in-substance fIxed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

 Amounts expected to be payable by the Agency under residual value guarantees

 The exercise price of a purchase option if it is reasonably certain the option will be executed

 Payments of penalties for terminating the lease or SBITA contract, if the term reflects the Agency
exercising that option

Payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or SBITA contract. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Agency's incremental borrowing rate is used. The incremental borrowing rate is
the rate that the Agency would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security, and conditions.

Variable payments that depend on an index or a rate (such as the Consumer Price Index or a market interest
rate) are initially measured using the index or rate as of the commencement of the lease and SBITA contract
term.

The Agency is a lessor for a noncancellable land lease. The Agency recognizes a lease receIvable and a
deferred inflow of resources in its fInancial statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the Agency initially measures the lease receivable at the present value of
payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced by the
principal portion of lease payments received. The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the
initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease
commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of resources is recognized as revenue over the term
of the lease.

Key estimates and judgments include how the Agency determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount
the expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease receipts.

The Agency uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.

The lease term includes the noncancellabte period of the lease. Lease receipts included in the measurement
of the lease receivable is comprised of fIxed payments from the lessee.
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Leases and Suscription Based Information Technology Arrangements (continued) 

The Agency monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will
remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are expected
to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable.

Implementation of New Accounting Pronouncements 

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93 – Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The
objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that
result from the replacement of an Interbank Offered Rate (IBOR). Some governments have entered into
agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on an interbank offered rate
(IBOR)—most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a result of global reference rate
reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of 2021, prompting governments
to amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference rates, by
either changing the reference rate or adding or changing fallback provisions related to the reference rate.
This Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 31, 2021. The impact to the Agency’s
financial reporting was not significant.

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94 – Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by
addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used in
this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator
(a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to
operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset),
for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some PPPs meet the definition of a service
concession arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this Statement as a PPP in which (1) the
operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the
ability to modify or approve which services the operator is required to provide, to whom the operator is
required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and (3) the
transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the
end of the arrangement. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022. The impact to
the Agency’s financial reporting was not significant.
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Implementation of New Accounting Pronouncements (continued) 

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. The objective of this Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting
for subscriptionbased information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use
subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a
SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for
SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. This Statement is
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022. For additional information, please see Note 8.

New Accounting Pronouncements – Not Yet Effective or Implemented 

In April 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022. The primary objective of this Statement is
to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of GASB Statements No. 34, 53, and 63. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after
December 31, 2023. The impact to the Agency’s financial reporting has not been determined. 

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. The primary
objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting
changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and
comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. This Statement is effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2023. The impact to the Agency’s financial reporting has not been
determined.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is
to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and
measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition
and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.
This Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2023. The impact to the Agency’s
financial reporting has not been determined.

3. Permits and Regulations 

The key regulations affecting the operations of the Agency are state regulations applicable to the Agency’s
withdrawals of water from water sources and state and federal regulations applicable to operation of the
Agency’s drinking water treatment facilities and distribution systems. Withdrawals of water are regulated
under water use permits issued by the Southwest Florida Water Management District (the District). The
water treatment facilities and distribution systems are regulated through permits issued by the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP).
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The Consolidated Permit, first issued by the District in January 1999, regulates withdrawals from 10 of the
13 regional wellfield systems operated by the Agency. The original Consolidated Permit included initial
withdrawal limits for each wellfield (annual average) and for each well within each wellfield (peak month
and annual average). A condition of the Consolidated Permit is to manage withdrawals from the wellfields
to minimize environmental impacts through optimum distribution of pumping among all wells according to
an approved operations plan.

Since January 1, 2003, the 10 wellfields of the Consolidated Permit no longer have individual withdrawal
limits and are considered a single system for the purpose of measuring compliance with the permitted
annual average withdrawal quantity. Combined withdrawals from the 10 wellfields are currently limited to 90
million gallons per day (mgd) on a 12-month running average basis. The Consolidated Permit was renewed
for the second time in January 2022, granting continued authorization to withdraw an annual average of 90
mgd from these 10 wellfields for the next ten-year period. The latest renewal of the Consolidated Permit
removed all requirements to manage withdrawals for the recovery of stressed wetlands and lakes as recovery
was demonstrated for all sites on and surrounding the 10 wellfields. The renewed permit requires Tampa
Bay Water to manage the withdrawals from these wellfields to maintain this level of achieved environmental
recovery.  

The remaining 3 wellfield systems, the South-Central Hillsborough Regional Wellfield, the Brandon Urban
Dispersed Wells, and the Carrollwood Wells, are regulated under separate water use permits issued by the
District. The Brandon Urban Dispersed Wells are permitted at 6 mgd on a 12-month running average basis.
The South-Central Hillsborough Regional Wellfield is permitted at 24.95 mgd on a 12-month running
average basis, this includes a temporary increase of 850,000 gallons per day as an interim solution to help
meet the increasing drinking water demands of southern Hillsborough County. The Carrollwood Wells can
supply 0.82 mgd on a 12-month running average basis. Tampa Bypass Canal, which is used to provide water
to the City of Tampa via augmentation of the Hillsborough River Reservoir as needed, is separately
permitted at 20 mgd on a 12-month running average basis.

The two surface water facilities that comprise the withdrawal component of the Enhanced Surface Water
System are the Tampa Bypass Canal Pump Station and the Alafia River Pump Station. The water use
permits for these two surface water sources allow the harvesting of a percentage of flow from these river
systems above either a minimum threshold flow or pool elevation. It is estimated that the Enhanced Surface
Water System yields on a long-term average basis approximately 90 mgd under normal hydrologic
conditions. The Tampa Bypass Canal Pump Station and transmission facilities convey water from the
Tampa Bypass Canal and Hillsborough River to the Regional Surface Water Treatment Plant and the
Regional Reservoir.
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The Alafia River Pump Station and transmission facilities also convey water from the Alafia River to the
Regional Surface Water Treatment Plant and the Regional Reservoir. It is estimated that the expanded
permitted withdrawals of the Tampa Bypass Canal and the expanded Enhanced Surface Water System
(including the Tampa Bypass Canal/Hillsborough River System, Alafia River, the Regional Reservoir and
Surface Water Treatment Plant) will allow the Agency to meet the future drinking water needs of its six
Member Governments through at least 2028.

The Regional Surface Water Treatment Plant (the Plant) was originally designed to treat up to 66 mgd from
the surface water sources and deliver that water to the regional system. In the fall of 2010 the Plant was
expanded and is now permitted to treat up to 120 mgd from surface water sources. The C.W. Bill Young
Regional Reservoir provides off-stream storage capacity so that the stored water can be utilized as a reliable
water source when surface water is not available for withdrawal from the river systems. The current
designed storage capacity of the reservoir is approximately 15.5 billion gallons. Production from the Tampa
Bay Seawater Desalination Plant is also used to meet drinking water demands. The desalination facility is
permitted to treat up to 25 mgd. The operational sustainable production capacity of the Regional Surface
Water Treatment Plant and the desalination facility are less than each facility’s permitted capacity.

The permitted quantity withdrawal limit for the 10 wellfields as stated in the Consolidated Permit is listed
below together with the permitted quantities for the remaining three wellfields and the surface water
facilities:

Water Supply Facility

Permitted
Capacity
in mgd

Consolidated Permit wellfields – total* 90.000
South-Central Hillsborough Regional Wellfield ** 24.950
Brandon Urban Dispersed Wells 6.000
Carrollwood Wells 0.820
Enhanced Surface Water System (consisting of Tampa Bypass Canal/

Hillsborough River, Alafia River, C.W. Bill Young Regional Reservoir)*** 90.000
Tampa Bay Seawater Desalination Plant 28.750

* Consolidated Permit wellfields: Cross Bar Ranch, Cypress Creek, Cypress Bridge, Morris Bridge, Starkey, South
Pasco, Eldridge-Wilde, Cosme/Odessa, Section 21, and Northwest Hillsborough. These wellfields are permitted as a
single system, and there is no annual withdrawal quantity assigned to any individual wellfield. These wellfields are
operated in accordance with the Optimized Regional Operations Plan.

** This includes a temporary increase of 850,000 gallons per day as an interim solution to help meet the increasing
drinking water demands of southern Hillsborough County.
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*** The water use permits for the Tampa Bypass Canal/Hillsborough River and the Alafia River facilities do not have 
assigned average annual quantities. The permits authorize the harvest of a percentage of river flows after either a 
threshold flow or pool stage has been achieved in each river system. The quantity shown represents the estimated 
median year yield for these facilities based on projections using the past 30 years of historical data.

The following table summarizes the actual annual water quantity sold and billed to the Member 
Governments of the Agency under the Uniform Rate for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023:

Member Government

Annual Average 
Water Quantity 

Sold (mgd)
Amounts

Billed
Hillsborough County 79.83 $ 73,677,410
City of New Port Richey 3.07 2,831,223
Pasco County 35.36 32,636,839
Pinellas County 50.73 46,819,502
City of St. Petersburg 28.55 26,346,991
City of Tampa 4.66 4,296,240
Total current year water sales 202.20 $ 186,608,205

Peak day delivery 273.29

In 2023 the Agency sold an average of 4.59 mgd to the City of Tampa under the Tampa By-Pass Canal
Surplus Water Agreement totaling $326,508.

Other operating revenues for the Agency totaled $200,177 in 2023.

4. Rate-Making Policies and Procedures

Under the provisions of the Master Water Supply Contract, the Agency establishes rates based on an Annual
Estimate that sets forth the expected cost of providing wholesale water service to the Member
Governments. The Annual Estimate is based on the Agency’s budget for the forthcoming fiscal year. The
Agency develops a uniform rate based on the Annual Estimate and the projected quantity of water expected
to be delivered to customers.
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The uniform rate consists of a variable cost component and a fixed cost component. The variable cost rate
is designed to recover Agency expenses that are directly related to the quantity of water delivered, primarily
chemicals, electric power, and water purchased from the Cities of Tampa and New Port Richey. The
variable cost rate is applied to the quantity of water delivered to Member Governments each month. The
fixed cost rate is designed to recover Agency expenses incurred for the operation, maintenance,
management, security, development, and financing of the water system. The fixed cost rate is assessed to
Member Governments monthly based on one twelfth of the total annual fixed cost applied to the ratio of
each member’s annual water usage during the previous fiscal year divided by such usage of all Member
Governments during such year. At fiscal year-end, each member’s share of this fixed cost is recalculated
based on the current year’s usage. The intent and purpose of the rate structure is to provide an equitable
means of matching the monthly billings with the Agency’s monthly cash flow needs. Based on analyses and
forecasts, fixed costs are currently estimated to constitute approximately 85% of the Annual Estimate.

5. Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Restricted funds are established to the extent required by bond resolutions for the Agency’s debt and other
contractual arrangements. Bond proceeds, water revenue, and investment revenue are utilized to maintain
the various funds at their required levels. Amounts not needed to fund requirements may be used for any
lawful purpose. As of September 30, 2023, the fair market value balances, components and descriptions of
the various funds are as follows:

Construction funds $ 133,512,671
Debt Service Interest and Principal Sinking Fund 57,998,210
Renewal and Replacement Fund 25,710,196
Capital Improvement Fund 24,124,712
Energy Savings Fund 1,065,460
Debt Service Reserves 46,616,302
Operations and Maintenance Reserve 5,304,024
Released Debt Service Fund 21,809,838
Desal - Reserves 4,171,362
SWTP - Reserves 3,861,783
Hillsborough County Joint Project Agreement 74,814
Debt Service Tranch 3 Issues costs 41,052

$ 324,290,424

Construction Funds – Construction funds account for unexpended debt proceeds and investment revenue
thereon from the Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 and 2022, and third-party grants for
construction.
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Debt Service Sinking Funds – Sinking funds represent the principal and interest amounts for the next debt
service payment due on the bonds of Series 2001A, 2005, 2015A, 2015B, 2016A, 2016B, 2016C, 2020
Master Bond (Tranches 1, 2 and 3), and 2022 bonds.

Renewal and Replacement Funds – Renewal and replacement funds are required for renewal and replacement of
the water production, transmission, and treatment facilities and are based on 5% of gross revenues for the
preceding fiscal year or such greater or lesser amount as may be determined appropriate by the system
engineers.

Capital Improvement Funds – Capital improvement funds are restricted to payment of capital costs of acquiring
and/or constructing additions or improvements to the water system.

Energy Savings Funds – Energy savings funds are restricted to payment of energy savings additions or
improvements to the water system.

Operations and Maintenance Funds – Operations and maintenance funds are restricted for operating costs and
are established at twice the monthly average variable costs as budgeted for each fiscal year.

Debt Service Reserve Funds – Debt service reserve funds are required to maintain the lesser of one year’s
maximum debt service or 125% of the average annual debt service for the Utility System Revenue Bonds
Series 2001A, 2005, 2015A, 2015B, 2016A, 2016B, 2016C, 2020 Master Bond (Tranches 1, 2 and 3), and
2022 bonds). 

Desal and SWTP Reserve Funds - Reserve accounts established through O&M agreements. See note 15 for
more information. 

Released Debt Service Fund  - Upon the issuance of the Series 2022 Bonds, the maturity of the agency's total
outstanding bonds was extended to Fiscal Year 2053. Therefore, the Debt Service Reserve account
requirement changed from the Maximum Annual Debt Service for all oustanding bonds to 125% of the
average Annual Debt Service for all outstanding bonds reducing the required balance of the Debt Service
Reserve Fund and releasing reserve funds for funding the Capital Improvement Program.

Hillsborough County Joint Project  -  In September 2022 the Board of Directors approved a Joint Project
Agreement between the Agency and Hillsborough County. The agreement is for the design and
construction of a new pipeline that will deliver additional water to a new pont of connection for
Hillsborough County 
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Deposits  

As of September 30, 2023, the total carrying amount, net of reconciling items, of the Agency’s deposits
(unrestricted and restricted), exclusive of petty cash of $1,450, was $254,392,687. All the Agency’s deposits
with financial institutions are made with depository institutions that are members of the state of Florida’s
collateral pool, are placed in accounts designated as “public deposit” accounts covered by the collateral pool
and, therefore, are considered to be insured.

Investments  

In August 2017, the Board of Directors approved Resolution 2017-002 which adopted a revised investment
policy. The policy was revised to identify opportunities, to control and mitigage market risks and continue
diversifying the agency's investment portfolio. The scope of the revised investment policy clarifies that the
overall policy applies to all surplus funds, to the extent there is no conflict with the Master Bond Resolution,
and if there is a conflict, the Master Bond Resolution governs. Authorized investments in this policy will
also be considered authorized investments for bond proceeds under the Master Bond Resolution, as
amended, under other permitted investments. The Agency’s investment policy permits investment in the
following: (1) U.S. government securities, (2) U.S. government agencies (full faith and credit of the U.S.
government), (3) federal instrumentalities (U.S. government-sponsored enterprises that are non-full faith
and credit), (4) mortgage-backed securities, (5) bank accounts and nonnegotiable interest-bearing time
certificates of deposit, (6) repurchase agreements; (7) commercial paper, (8) corporate notes, (9) bankers’
acceptances, (10) state and/or local government taxable and/or tax-exempt debt, (11) registered investment
companies (money market mutual funds), (12) supranational's and (13) intergovernmental investment pools.

The Agency’s investments are reported at fair value in the statement of net position, except for money
market funds and U.S. government obligations with original maturities less than one year, which are
reported at amortized cost in accordance with GASB Statement No. 72.

Investments having a maturity of one year or less at time of purchase are recorded at amortized cost.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
Agency’s investment policies seek to limit exposure to credit risk by establishing minimum credit ratings that
must be met and maintained by providers of certain types of investments. Policies also require that certain
types of agreements be collateralized with investments authorized under the policies.
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Investments (continued)  

The following is the minimum credit rating requirements within the Agency's investment policy for each
type of debt security:

Security Type Rating
Commercial Paper P-1/A-1
Corporate Notes Single "A" category by any two NRSROs
Banker's Acceptances P-1/A-1
State and/or Local Government Taxable

and/or Tax-Exempt Debt Single "A" category by two NRSROs
Supranationals AA by two NRSROs
Registered Investment Companies (Money Market

Funds) AAAm
Intergovernmental Investment Pool AAA

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a
government's investment in a single issuer. Exclusive of investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the
U.S. government and investments in external investment pools and other pooled investments, the Agency
had no investment concentrations in individual issuers in excess of 5% of its total investments on
September 30, 2023.

The Agency's investment policy establishes limitations on portfolio composition, both by investment type
and dealer, in order to control concentration of credit risk. The following maximum limits are guidelines
established for diversification by instrument

Security Type
Maximum

Allocation Limit
Maximum

Issuer Limit
U.S. Government Securities %100 %N/A
U.S. Agencies %50 %25
Federal instrumentalities %80 %25
Mortgage-Backed Securities %20 %15
Non-Negotiable CDs %65 %35
Repurchase Agreements %50 %25
Repurchase Agreements %25 %5
Corporate Notes %25 %5
Bankers' Acceptances %25 %5
State/Local Tax-Exempt Debt %20 %5
Supranationals %15 %5
Money Market Mutual Funds %50 %25
LGIPs %25 %N/A
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Investments (continued)  

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the Agency’s portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes
in interest rates over time. The Agency’s investment policy outlines the following strategies to control and
mitigate its exposure to interest rate risk:

 The Agency will maintain a minimum of six months of budgeted operating expense in short term
investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements.

 The maximum percent of callable securities in the portfolio will be 20%.

 The duration of the portfolio will generally be approximately equal to the duration (typically, plus or
minus 20%) of a Market Benchmark, an index selected by the Agency based on the Agency’s investment
objectives, constraints and risk tolerances.

The maximum maturity limits by investment type as established by the Agency's investment policy are as
follows:

Security Type
Maturity

Limit
U.S. Government Securities 5 years
U.S. Agencies 5 years
Federal Instrumentalities 5 years
Mortgage-Backed Securities 5 years
Non-Negotiable CDs 2 years
Repurchase Agreements 60 days
Commercial Paper 270 days
Corporate Notes 5 years
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days
State/Local Tax Exempt debt 5 years
Supranational's 5 years
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Investments (continued)  

Investments held by the Agency (restricted and unrestricted) on September 30, 2023, are summarized below.
The investments are summarized by type of investment and show the maturity, interest rate, fair value, and
credit rating.

Credit Rating
Investments Maturities Interest Rate Fair Value S&P Moody's

U.S. Treasury Notes 10/02/23 - 8/31/28 0.375 to 4.375 $ 77,807,348
U.S. Government Agency 12/04/23 - 3/10/28 0.250 to 4.750 33,541,951
Amazon.com Inc. 5/12/24 - 8/22/24 .450 to 2.800 2,579,812 AA A1
Bank of America Corp 6/14/24 - 4/22/26 .976 to 5.754 3,508,206 A- A1
Bank of Montreal 5/17/24 - 5/01/25 .625 to 1.850 2,508,555 A- A2
Bank of New York Mellon Corp 6/13/25 3.430 460,746 A A1
Caterpillar Financial Services Corp 5/17/24 .0450 1,385,303 A A2
Charles Schwab Corp 2/01/24 - 3/18/24 .750 to 3.550 1,387,093 A- A2
Chubb INA Holdings Corp Notes 3/15/25 3.150 1,311,029 A A3
Florida Power & Light Co 5/15/26 4.450 489,350 A A1
Honeywell International Inc 6/01/25 1.350 1,497,472 A A2
Inter-American Development Bank 10/04/23 - 9/23/24 .500 to 3.000 5,233,551 AAA Aaa
Int'l Bank For Reconst & Development 3/19/24 - 10/28/25 .500 to 3.500 6,089,551 AAA Aaa
International Finance Corp 10/16/24 - 7/13/28 1.375 to 4.500 3,976,638 AAA Aaa
John Deere Capital Corp Notes 1/17/24 - 9/08/25 .450 to 4.050 2,020,736 A A2
JP Morgan Chase & Co 2/01/24 - 6/23/25 .969 to 3.875 2,828,639 A- A1
Morgan Stanley 4/17/25 - 7/17/26 .864 to 4.679 2,354,677 A- A1
National Rural Utilities Cooperative Corp 10/30/25 5.450 349,563 A- A2
PACCAR Financial Corp 8/9/24 - 8/10/26 .500 to 5.050 2,525,419 A+ A1
QUALCOMM Inc 5/20/25 3.450 1,548,496 A A2
Royal Bank of Canada 1/19/24 - 1/21/25 .425 to 1.600 3,098,757 A A1
salesforce.com Inc 7/15/24 .625 749,636 A+ A2
Target Corp 4/15/24 2.250 1,572,487 A A2
Toronto-Dominion Bank Note 3/04/24 - 7/17/26 .550 to 5.532 2,874,470 A A1
Toyota Motor Credit Corp 1/08/24 - 6/30/25 1.450 to 3.950 2,677,942 A+ A1
Total investments $ 164,377,427
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Fair Value Measurements  

In Fiscal Year 2016 Tampa Bay Water adopted GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application. 

GASB Statement No. 72 defines fair value as the exit price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer
a liability in the principal or most advantageous market in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Fair value guidance also establishes a fair value hierarchy that requires
an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. Based on the inputs used to determine fair value, a three-level fair value hierarchy is
used as follows:

Level 1 – Valuations are based on observable inputs that reflect quoted market prices in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities at the reporting date.

Level 2 – Valuations are based on (a) quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, or
(b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or (c) pricing
inputs other than the quoted prices that are directly or indirectly observable at the reporting date. Level
2 assets include securities that are redeemable at or near the balance sheet date and for which a model
was derived for valuation. 

Level 3 – Valuations are based on pricing inputs that are unobservable and include situations where (a)
there is little, if any, market activity for the investments, or (b) the investments cannot be independent
valued, or (c) the investments cannot be immediately redeemed at or near the year-end.

The assets or liability’s fair-value measurement level within the fair-value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair-value measurement. 
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Fair Value Measurements (continued)  

The following table summarizes the fair value of Tampa Bay Water’s investments at year end, in accordance
with the levels of the GASB 72 valuations. 

Fair Value Measurement Using

9/30/2023

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs (Level 2)

Investments by Fair Value Level
US Corporate $ 37,728,387 $ 37,728,387
Supranational 15,299,740 15,299,740
US Government Agency 33,541,951 33,541,951
US Treasury 77,807,349 77,807,349

Total Investment by Fair Value Level $ 164,377,427 $ 164,377,427

The fair value of the financial instruments shown in the table above as of September 30, 2023 represent the
estimated amounts that would be received to sell those assets in an orderly transaction between market
participants at that date. Those fair value measurements maximize the use of observable inputs. 

The estimated fair value of the Agency's investments in debt securities is based on other market data for the
same or comparable instruments and transactions in establishing the prices, including using standard inputs
consisting of benchmark yields, reportable trades, benchmark securities (where applicable), and reference
data including market research publications. Fair value of debt securities do not trade on regular basis in
active market and are, therefore, classified as Level 2 securities. 
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7. Grants Receivable and Capital Contributions 

The Agency receives various grants during the year, of which are required to be spent according to the
stipulations outlined in the grant. A failure to follow grant stipulations may result in non-compliance with
the grant.

8. Lease Receivable 

The Agency leases land to a third party to use a cellular tower on the property. As of September 30, 2023,
the Agency's lease receivable was valued at $58,310, and has been included in other accounts receivable on
the statement of net position. The deferred inflow of resources associated with this lease that will be
recognized as revenue over the term of the lease was $57,876. The payment for the lease receivable is
expected to be received in the subsequent years as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest

2024 $ 29,046 $ 338
2025 29,264 119

$ 58,310 $ 457
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9. Capital Assets 

The following are summaries of capital asset changes for the year ended September 30, 2023.

Balance
October 1,

2022 Additions Deletions

Balance
September 30,

2023
Capital assets, non-depreciable:

Land $ 79,242,635 $ 751,919 $ - $ 79,994,554
Water capacity rights 316,397,360 - - 316,397,360
Construction-in-progress 48,575,437 29,923,565 13,784,451 64,714,551

Total non-depreciable capital assets 444,215,432 30,675,484 13,784,451 461,106,465
Capital assets, depreciable:

Land improvements 3,294,936 8,240 - 3,303,176
Buildings 21,759,959 94,842 - 21,854,801
Wells and wellfield improvements 135,263,679 2,393,636 - 137,657,315
Transmisison mains 339,178,229 - - 339,178,229
Water treatment and pumping facilities 706,061,917 2,440,601 - 708,502,518
Reservoir 304,564,796 - - 304,564,796
Other equipment and software 21,973,276 1,863,412 515,734 23,320,954
Right-to-use leased land 1,323,343 50,955 - 1,374,298
Right-to-use leased equipment 63,252 157,041 - 220,293
Right-to-use Subscribed Based IT Arrangements - 1,128,305 - 1,128,305

Total depreciable capital assets 1,533,483,387 8,137,032 515,734 1,541,104,685
Less: accumulated depreciation:

Land improvements 1,327,698 55,875 - 1,383,573
Buildings 8,952,634 622,726 - 9,575,360
Wells and wellfield improvements 79,859,588 3,371,598 - 83,231,186
Transmisison mains 93,414,688 4,606,438 - 98,021,126
Water treatment and pumping facilities 263,506,807 15,570,940 - 279,077,747
Reservoir 39,647,985 3,556,594 - 43,204,579
Other equipment and software 15,761,027 1,209,699 511,133 16,459,593
Right-to-use leased land 33,316 33,316 - 66,632
Right-to-use leased equipment 17,639 61,566 - 79,205
Right-to-use Subscribed Based IT Arrangements - 336,820 - 336,820

Total accumulated depreciation 502,521,382 29,425,572 511,133 531,435,821
Total depreciated capital assets, net 1,030,962,005 (20,288,540) 4,601 1,009,668,864
Total capital assets, net $ 1,475,177,437 $ 9,476,944 $ 13,789,050 $ 1,470,775,329

Deletions from construction-in-progress in 2023 include $4,819,640 that were transferred to depreciable
capital assets, $871,262 transferred to equipment, $751,899 transferred to land and $7,341,650 expensed.
Commitments on construction contracts at September 30, 2023, were $50,944,131.
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10. Accounts Payable 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses on September 30, 2023, consist of amounts owed for operating and
payroll expenses as follows:

Accounts payable $ 9,172,450
Accrued payroll expenses 3,688,646

$ 12,861,096
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11. Long-Term Debt and Other Noncurrent Liabilities 

The Agency has issued various series of debt to finance the construction of new sources of water to meet the needs of its Member Governments, as
well as facilities at Clearwater and Cypress Creek Wellfield to meet administrative and security needs.

2022 Bonds

On October 27, 2022, the Agency issued $122,075,000 of Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 including a premium in the amount of
$9,043,101.  These proceeds less the cost of issuance of $1,118,101 allowed the Agency to deposit $130,000,000 into a project fund to build and
maintain the pipelines, pump stations and water treatment plants that make up the Tampa Bay region’s water supply system.  The interest on these
Bonds is between 5% and 5.25%, and fully mature on October 1, 2052.

2020 Master Bond

On February 17, 2020 the Agency entered into a Forward Bank Loan Refunding with Bank of America. The Tax-Exempt Forward Bank Loan
Refunding consists of three draws (Tranches) and locked in the interest rate of 2.31% for each Tranche. The first Tranche was closed on July 7,
2020 and defeased the outstanding Series 2010 Bonds which were redeemed on October 1, 2020. The second Tranche was closed on July 7, 2021
and defeased the outstanding Series 2011A Bonds which were redeemed on October 1, 2021. Tranche three was closed on July 6, 2023 and defeased
the outstanding Series 2013 Bonds for redemption on October 1, 2023. 

Long-term debt and acquisition credits as of September 30, 2023, consist of:

Issue Purpose Maturity
Interest

Rate Original Amount
Outstanding

Amount

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2022

Pay or reimburse a portion of the costs of the 2022 Projects, fund a
deposit to the Reserve Account so that the total amount on deposit
therein equals the Reserve Account Requirement and capitalize a portion
of the interest on the 2022 Bonds 2053

5.00% to
5.25% $ 122,075,000 $ 122,075,000

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2020 Tranche 3

Advance refund a portion of the outstanding Utility System Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 2038 2.31% 76,220,000 76,220,000

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2020 Tranche 2

Advance refund a portion of the outstanding Utility System Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A 2024 2.31% 46,662,000 31,291,000
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Issue Purpose Maturity
Interest

Rate Original Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,

Series 2020 Tranche 1
Advance refund a portion of the outstanding Utility System Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 2025 2.31% 6,709,000 6,388,000

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2016C

Advance refund a portion of the outstanding Utility System Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 2031

1.17% to
3.61% 55,345,000 55,345,000

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2016B

Advance refund a portion of the outstanding Utility System Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B 2031

1.17% to
3.61% 32,785,000 31,155,000

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2016A

Advance refund all of the outstanding Utility System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2008 2038

3.25% to
5.00% 96,630,000 96,630,000

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2015B

Advance refund a portion of the outstanding Utility System Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A & Series 2011B 2031

1.01% to
3.33% 95,975,000 89,575,000

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2015A

Advance refund a portion of the outstanding Utility System Refunding
& Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 and advance refund a
portion of th outstanding Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2011A & Series 2011B 2036

4.00% to
5.00% 180,835,000 180,835,000

Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2013

Pay or reimburse a portion of the costs of the 2013 Projects, fund a
deposit to the Reserve Account so that the total amount on deposit
therein equals the Reserve Account Requirement and capitalize a portion
of the interest on the 2013 Bonds 2038

3.50% to
5.00% 75,295,000 -

Utility System Refunding and
Improvement Revenue Bonds,       
Series 2005

Advance refund certain of the outstanding Utility System Revenue
Bonds, Series 1998A, certain of the outstanding Utility System Revenue
Bonds, Series 1998B, certain of the outstanding Utility Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001B and fund the 2005 Project 2024 5.50% 174,965,000 51,000,000

Utility System Refunding and
Improvement Revenue Bonds,     
Series 2001A

Advance refund certain of the outstanding Utility System Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999, paying or reimbursing the costs of the 2001A
Project and funding the Reserve Account as defined 2029

5.10% to
6.00% 309,370,000 50,000,000

Acquisition Credits
Infrastructure that the agency bought from member governments when
the agency was created. 2029 4.865% 159,645,307 44,260,578

Bond Premiums Premium paid over and above the face value of the bonds to the agency 2029 113,526,322 37,525,160

Total long-term debt $1,546,037,629 $ 872,299,738
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All of the Agency's Revenue Bonds were issued publicly. The Agency’s changes in noncurrent liabilities for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, was as follows:

Balance
10/01/2022 Additions Deletions

Balance
09/30/2023

Due Within
One Year

2001A bonds $ 50,000,000 $ - $ - $ 50,000,000 $ -
2005 bonds 74,530,000 - (23,530,000) 51,000,000 24,820,000
2013 bonds 75,295,000 - (75,295,000) - -
2015A bonds 180,835,000 - - 180,835,000 -
2015B bonds 90,485,000 - (910,000) 89,575,000 930,000
2016A bonds 96,630,000 - - 96,630,000 -
2016B bonds 31,405,000 - (250,000) 31,155,000 260,000
2016C bonds 55,345,000 - - 55,345,000 -
2020 Master Bonds 6,534,000 - (146,000) 6,388,000 149,000
2020 Master Bonds 46,408,000 - (15,117,000) 31,291,000 15,466,000
2020 Master Bonds - 76,220,000 - 76,220,000 266,000
2022 Bonds - 122,075,000 - 122,075,000 -
Lease Payable 1,396,988 157,041 (82,959) 1,471,070 84,332
SBITA Contracts Payables - 1,128,305 (389,638) 738,667 367,748
Acquisition credits 51,882,448 - (7,621,870) 44,260,578 8,005,250
Unamortized bond issue premium 40,237,758 9,043,101 (11,755,699) 37,525,160 -

800,984,194 208,623,447 (135,098,166) 874,509,475 50,348,330
Less current portion (47,615,991) (50,348,330) 47,615,991 (50,348,330) -
Total long-term debt 753,368,203 158,275,117 (87,482,175) 824,161,145 50,348,330
Total OPEB liability 360,874 28,825 (22,589) 367,110 -
Net pension liability – FRS Pension plan 11,461,170 3,727,954 (2,947,522) 12,241,602 -
Net pension liability – HIS plan 3,749,051 1,875,228 (262,754) 5,361,525 -

$ 768,939,298 $ 163,907,124 $ (90,715,040) $ 842,131,382 $ 50,348,330
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Annual bonds debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds long-term debt as of September 30, 2023,
are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 41,891,000 $ 31,797,931 $ 73,688,931
2025 44,509,000 30,447,740 74,956,740
2026 43,518,000 28,633,693 72,151,693
2027 46,339,000 26,752,515 73,091,515
2028 48,347,000 24,692,782 73,039,782
2029–2033 256,368,000 89,103,271 345,471,271
2034–2038 152,689,000 51,473,339 204,162,339
2039–2043 61,328,000 28,804,227 90,132,227
2044–2048 41,705,000 19,155,800 60,860,800
2049–2052 53,820,000 6,996,250 60,816,250

$ 790,514,000 $ 337,857,548 $ 1,128,371,548

Annual acquisition credits debt service requirements to maturity for all acquisition credits long-term debt as
of September 30, 2023, are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 8,005,250 $ 2,226,307 $ 10,231,557
2025 8,407,915 1,823,643 10,231,558
2026 8,830,833 1,400,725 10,231,558
2027 9,275,023 956,534 10,231,557
2028 9,741,557 490,000 10,231,557

$ 44,260,578 $ 6,897,209 $ 51,157,787
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Revenues Pledged  

The Agency has pledged its net revenues (gross revenues less operating expenses), all as defined by the Master
Bond Resolution, to repay its $790,514,000 outstanding utility system revenue bonds described above. The
bonds are payable solely from net revenues and are pledged through 2052. Pledged revenues, which are
budgeted and collected annually to meet the annual debt service requirements, were $76,009,062 in 2023.
Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 50% of annual
operating revenues. Bond covenants require the Agency to fund, among other accounts, sinking funds, and
debt service reserves with pledged revenue. These funding requirements are described in Note 5.

The covenants also require that the Agency not issue any other obligations payable from the specified pledged
revenue nor voluntarily create or cause to be created any debt, lien, pledge, assignment, encumbrances, or
other charges having priority to or being on a parity with the lien of the specific bonds except under
conditions specified in the resolutions. On September 30, 2023, the Agency complied with all debt covenants.

Defeasance of Debt  

In 2023, the Agency advanced refunded the Series 2013 bonds through the third tranche of the 2020 Master
Bond. The proceeds of the refunding bonds were used to purchase United States government and agency
securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust to fund all future debt service payments on the refunded
debt. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered defeased, and the related liability has been removed from
the accompanying financial statements. On September 30, 2023, the principal amount outstanding of the
2013 defeased bonds is $75,295,000.

Default Remedies

Terms specified in the debt agreements entered into by the Agency include provisions for remedies available
to the lender in the even of default. In summary, lenders may protect any and all rights under the Laws of the
State of Florida or granted and contained in each Bond Resolution to ultimately seek enforcement of an
exercise all remedies available.

Lease Payable

The Agency is a lessee for noncancellable leases of land and equipment. At September 30, 2023, the Agency's
lease payable of $1,471,070 was composed of the following:

Ground lease for the Agency to operate its desalination plan – annual payments totaling $46,375, including
interest at an annual rate of 1.70%.  Payments are due monthly, and the lease expires in 2062.  Lease liability
balance is $1,327,517 at September 30, 2023.

Equipment leases for postage machines – annual payments totaling $2,616, including interest at an annual rate
of 0.75%.  Payments are due quarterly, and the leases expire in 2024.  Lease liability balance is $1,955 at
September 30, 2023.
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Equipment lease for gas detection devices and related equipment – annual payments totaling $15,184,
including interest at an annual rate of 0.75%.  Payments are due monthly, and the lease expires in 2025.  Lease
liability balance is $26,390 at September 30, 2023.

Equipment lease for a copier machine – annual payments totaling $46,745, including interest at an annual rate
of 3.56%.  Payments are due monthly, and the lease expires in 2026.  Lease liability balance is $115,208 at
September 30, 2023.

The future principal and interest lease payments as of September 30, 2023, were as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 84,332 $ 27,121 $ 111,453
2025 80,682 25,069 105,751
2026 51,770 21,873 73,643
2027 25,248 21,127 46,375
2028 25,680 20,694 46,374
2029–2033 135,154 96,719 231,873
2034–2038 147,136 84,738 231,874
2039–2043 160,180 71,694 231,874
2044–2048 174,380 57,494 231,874
2049–2053 189,839 42,035 231,874
2054–2058 206,669 25,205 231,874
2059–2063 190,000 7,081 197,081

$ 1,471,070 $ 500,850 $ 1,971,920

SBITA Contracts Payable

The Agency is a party to various IT subscriptions with software vendors.  At September 30, 2023, the
Agency's SBITA contracts payable of $738,667 consists of the following:

Energy billing data management software – two annual payments of $10,097 in February 2023 and 2024,
including interest at an annual rate of 3.54%.  SBITA liability is $9,747 at September 30, 2023.

Microsoft Office 365 suite and cloud services – three annual payments of $209,303 in November 2022, 2023,
and 2024, including interest at an annual rate of 3.55%.  SBITA liability is $396,992 at September 30, 2023.

Land management software, including right-of-way management and ticketing system – three annual
payments of $175,000 in December 2022, 2023, and 2024, including interest at an annual rate of 3.55%.
SBITA liability is $331,928 at September 30, 2023. 
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The future principal and interest SBITA payments as of September 30, 2023, were as follows:
Principal Interest Total

2024 $ 367,748 $ 15,022 $ 382,770
2025 370,919 1,544 372,463

$ 738,667 $ 16,566 $ 755,233

12. Employee Retirement Plan 

General Information  

Substantially all full-time employees of the Agency are eligible to participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System (FRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public retirement system that provides a defined benefit
pension plan (the Pension Plan) for all state and participating county, district school board, community
college, and university employees. The defined benefit plan was established in 1970 by the Florida Legislature.
In 2002, the legislature amended the laws creating a new employer-funded, optional defined contribution
program, the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program (the Investment Plan). Substantially all full-time
employees are eligible to participate in this plan in lieu of the pension plan. Agency employees must have
made their plan election prior to March 1, 2004. Subsequent to that date, all plan participants may exercise a
one-time option to switch plans. New employees may elect to participate in either plan when eligible. FRS
also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, and
Chapter 22B, Florida Administrative Code.

All retirement legislation enacting benefit improvements must comply with Article X, Section 14, of the State
Constitution and with Part VII, Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. Both of these provisions require that any
increase in retirement benefits must be funded concurrently on an actuarially sound basis. The plans are
administered by the State of Florida Division of Retirement, Department of Management Services. The FRS
publishes an unaudited annual report that provides 10-year historical trend information about progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The most recent available report is for the plan
year ended June 30, 2023 and is available online at:

https://www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/publications/annual_reports 
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Contributions  

The Florida Legislature enacted legislation in 2007 (Chapter 2007-84, Laws of Florida) that established uniform
employer contribution rates for the FRS membership classes and subclasses and the Deferred Retirement
Option Program (DROP). These rates are updated as of July 1 of each year. In 2011, legislation changed the
plan making it mandatory for employees in the regular and senior management class to contribute 3% to the
plan, while Drop participants are not required to contribute. The Agency is required to contribute to the plans
at these actuarially determined rates. Effective July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023, the plan rates were 11.91%,
31.57%, and 18.60% for the regular class, senior management class, and drop participants, respectively. In
2021, legislation changed the plan rates for the plan year beginning July 1, 2023 to 13.57%, 34.52%, and
21.13% for the regular class, senior management, and drop participants, respectively. These rates include the
Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) contribution percentages mentioned in the HIS section of this note. The
Agency’s contributions for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, were $1,551,593.

FRS Pension Plan

FRS Benefits Provided  

The Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, with a DROP for eligible
employees. Benefits under this plan are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and service
credit.

For Pension Plan members enrolled before July 1, 2011, and retire at or after age 62 with at least 6 years of
credited service or with 30 years of service, regardless of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
monthly for life, equal to 1.6% of their average final compensation for each year of credited service. Final
average compensation is the employee’s average of the 5 highest fiscal years of salary earned during credited
service. Vested employees may retire before age 62 and receive benefits that are reduced 5% for each year
prior to normal retirement age of date. Employees enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, and retire at or after age
65 with at least 8 years of credited service or with 33 years of service regardless of age, are entitled to a
retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% of their average final compensation for each year of
credited service. Final average compensation is the employee’s average of the 8 highest fiscal years of salary
earned during credited service. Vested employees may retire before age 65 and receive benefits that are
reduced 5% for each year prior to normal retirement age or date.

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the Pension Plan before
July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living adjustment is 3%
per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on or after July 1, 2011,
there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of-living adjustment is a
proportion of 3% determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service
credit at retirement multiplied by 3%. Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a
cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

81



Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2023

12. Employee Retirement Plan (continued) 

FRS Pension Plan

In addition to the above benefits, the DROP allows eligible members to defer receipt of monthly retirement
benefit payments while continuing employment with a FRS employer for a period not to exceed 96 months
after electing to participate. Deferred monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest.
There are no required contributions by DROP participants.

FRS Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  

At September 30, 2023, the Agency reported a liability of $12,241,602 for its proportionate share of the FRS
Pension Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the
measurement date. The Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the Agency's
fiscal year 2023 contributions relative to the contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2023, the
Agency’s proportionate share was 0.03072%, which was an decrease of 0.0001% from its proportionate share
measured as of June 30, 2022.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the Agency recognized pension expense of $2,795,930. In
addition, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pension from the following sources.

Deferred
 Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,149,381 $ -
Change of assumptions 798,009 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on Pension Plan investments 511,242 -
Changes in proportion and differences between Agency

Pension Plan contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 541,757 18,734

Agency Pension Plan contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 392,272 -

Total $ 3,392,661 $ 18,734
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FRS Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)  

The deferred outflows of resources related to the Pension Plan, totaling $392,272 resulting from Agency
contributions to the Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Pension Plan will be recognized in the pension
expense as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2024 $ 553,241
2025 60,521
2026 2,115,838
2027 198,681
2028 53,374

Total 2,981,655

FRS Actuarial Assumptions  

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate 2.40%
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.70%, net of pension plan investment expense, including

inflation

Mortality rates were based on the PUB-2010 base table.

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of June 30, 2023, were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on the Pension Plan investments was not based on historical returns,
but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy’s description
of each asset class was used to map target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class
assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an adjustment for inflation
assumption. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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FRS Actuarial Assumptions (continued)  

Target
Allocation(1)

Annual
Arithmetic

Return

Compound
Annual

(Geometric)
Return

Standard
Deviation

Cash %1.0 %2.9 %2.9 %1.1
Fixed income 19.8 4.5 4.4 3.4
Global equity 54.0 8.7 7.1 18.1
Real estate (property) 10.3 7.6 6.6 14.8
Private equity 11.1 11.9 8.8 26.3
Strategic investments 3.8 6.3 6.1 7.7
Total %100.0

Assumed inflation – mean 2.4 1.4

(1) As outlined in the Pension Plan’s investment policy.

FRS Discount Rate  

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.70%. The Pension Plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculation of the total pension liability is equal to the
long-term expected rate of return.

FRS Sensitivity of Agency’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate  

The following represents the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.70%, as well as what the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.70%) or one percentage point
higher (7.70%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
5.70%

Current
Discount Rate

6.70%
1% Increase

7.70%
$ 20,911,149 $ 12,241,602 $ 4,988,489
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FRS Fiduciary Net Position  

Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered System Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

This report may be obtained by writing to the Division of Retirement, Research Education and Policy
Section, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, FL 32315-9000, by calling (850) 488-5706, or by accessing its internet
site at http://www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/ publications/annual reports.

Payables to the FRS Pension Plan  

At September 30, 2023, the Agency reported a payable in the amount of $400,310 or outstanding
contributions to the Pension Plan.

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program  

HIS General Information

The HIS program is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established under Florida
Statutes, Section 112.363, and may be amended by the Florida Legislature at any time. The benefit is a monthly
payment to assist retirees of state-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs and
is administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.

HIS Benefits Provided

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS
payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement, with a minimum HIS
payment of $30 and a maximum payment of $150 per month. To be eligible to receive these benefits, a retiree
under a state-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may
include Medicare.

HIS Contributions

The HIS program is funded by retirement contributions from FRS participating employers as set by the
Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS
members. Effective July 1, 2022 and 2023, the rates were 1.66% for both years. The Agency contributed
100% of its statutorily required contributions for the current and preceding three years. HIS program
contributions are deposited into a separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS program
benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event, legislative
appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be
reduced or cancelled.

The Agency’s contributions to the HIS plan totaled $236,725 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.
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Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program (continued)  

HIS Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At September 30, 2023, the Agency reported a liability of $5,361,525 for its proportionate share of the HIS
program's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the
measurement date. The Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the Agency’s
fiscal year contributions relative to the fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2023,
the Agency’s proportionate share was 0.03376%, which was an decrease of 0.0016% from its proportionate
share measured as of June 30, 2022.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the Agency recognized pension expense of $2,041,615. In
addition, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 78,489 $ 12,584
Change of assumptions 140,953 464,594
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on HIS program investments 2,769 -
Changes in proportion and differences between Agency

HIS program contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 97,851 156,026

Agency HIS program contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 63,818 -

Total $ 383,880 $ 633,204
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Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program (continued)  
The deferred outflows of resources related to the HIS program, totaling $63,818 resulting from Agency
contributions to the HIS program subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIS plan will be recognized in pension
expense as follows: 

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2024 $ (33,699)
2025 (30,432)
2026 (52,623)
2027 (109,010)
2028 (74,918)
Thereafter (12,460)

Total (313,142)

HIS Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.40%
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation
Municipal rate 3.65%

Mortality rates were based on the PUB-2010 base table

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of June 30, 2023 were based on certain
results of an actuarial experience study of the FRS for the period  July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.
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Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program (continued)  

HIS Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.65%. In general, the discount rate for
calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term
expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is
essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single
equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS program sponsor. The Bond
Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond
index.

HIS Sensitivity of the Agency’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following represents the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 3.65%, as well as what the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.65%) or one percentage point
higher (4.65%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
2.65%

Current
Discount Rate

3.65%
1% Increase

4.65%
Agency's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 6,116,663 $ 5,361,525 $ 4,735,566

HIS Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information regarding the HIS program’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered System Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

This report may be obtained by writing to the Division of Retirement, Research Education and Policy
Section, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, FL 32315-9000, by calling (850) 488-5706, or by accessing its internet
site at: https://www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/publications/annual_reports

Payables to the HIS Program

At September 30, 2023, the Agency reported a payable in the amount of $38,704 for outstanding
contributions to the HIS program.
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The aggregate amount of net position liability, related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources and pension expense for the Agency's defined benefit pension plans are summarized below::

FRS Pension
Plan HIS Program Total

Net pension liability $ 12,241,602 $ 5,361,525 $ 17,603,127
Deferred outflows of resources related

to pension 3,392,661 383,880 3,776,541
Deferred inflows of resources related

to pension 18,734 633,204 651,938
Pension expense 2,795,930 2,041,615 4,837,545

Investment Plan  

The State Board of Administration (SBA) administers the defined contribution plan officially titled the FRS
Investment Plan. The Investment Plan is reported in the SBA’s annual financial statements and in the State of
Florida Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to participate in the FRS
Investment Plan in lieu of the FRS defined benefit plan. Agency employees participating in DROP are not
eligible to participate in the FRS Investment Plan. Employer and employee contributions, including amounts
contributed to individual member’s accounts, are defined by law, but the ultimate benefit depends in part on
the performance of investment funds. Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the FRS
Investment Plan are established and may be amended by the Florida Legislature. The FRS Investment Plan is
funded with the same employer and employee contribution rates that are based on salary and membership
class (regular class, senior management) as the Pension Plan. Contributions are directed to individual member
accounts, and the individual members allocate contributions and account balances among various approved
investment choices. Costs of administering the FRS Investment Plan, including the FRS Financial Guidance
Program, are funded through an employer contribution of 0.06% of payroll and by forfeited benefits of plan
members. Allocations to the investment member’s accounts during fiscal year 2023, as established by Section
121.72, Florida Statutes, are based on a percentage of gross compensation, by class, as follows: regular class
6.30% and senior management service class 7.67%.
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Investment Plan (continued)  

For all membership classes, employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and are vested after
one year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings. If an accumulated benefit obligation
for service credit originally earned under the Pension Plan is transferred to the FRS Investment Plan, the
member must have the years of service required for Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit
represented by the transferred funds) to be vested for these funds and the earnings on the funds. Non-vested
employer contributions are placed in a suspense account for up to five years. If the employee returns to FRS-
covered employment within the five-year period, the employee will regain control over their account. If the
employee does not return within the five-year period, the employee will forfeit the accumulated account
balance. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the information for the amount of forfeitures was
unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these amounts, if any, would be immaterial to
the Agency.

After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may roll over vested funds to another
qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the FRS Investment Plan, receive a lump­sum distribution,
leave the funds invested for future distribution, or any combination of these options. Disability coverage is
provided; the member may either transfer the account balance to the Pension Plan when approved for
disability retirement to receive guaranteed lifetime monthly benefits under the Pension Plan or remain in the
FRS Investment Plan and rely upon that account balance for retirement income.

13. Other Post-Employment Health Care Benefits 

The Agency implemented GASB Statement No. 75 in fiscal year 2018 to account for certain post-
employment health care benefits provided by the Agency. GASB Statement No. 75 replaced GASB
Statement No. 45

Plan Description  

The Post-Employment Health Care Benefits Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan administered by
the Agency. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, former employees who retire
from the Agency and their eligible dependents may continue to participate in the Agency’s fully insured health
and hospitalization plan for medical and prescription drug coverage. The Agency subsidizes the premium
rates paid by retirees by allowing them to participate in the plans at blended group (implicitly subsidized)
premium rates for both active and retired employees. These rates provide an implicit subsidy for retirees
because, on an actuarial basis, their current and future claims are expected to result in higher costs to the plan
on average than those of active employees.
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Funding Policy  

For the Post-Employment Health Care Benefits Plan, contribution requirements of the Agency are
established and may be amended through recommendations of the Chief Financial Officer and action from
the Board of Directors. The Agency has not advanced-funded or established a funding methodology for the
annual Other Post-Employment Benefits OPEB costs or the total OPEB liability. As of the last required
actuarial evaluation, October 1, 2021, there were two retiree and zero eligible dependents receiving post-
employment health care benefits. The plan is funded on "pay as you go" basis and as such, there are no assets
accumulated in a trust to pay related benefits. For the year ended September 30, 2023, $22,589  was
contributed for pay as you go benefits of the Plan.

Plan Membership  

The following schedule (derived from the most recent actuarial valuation report) reflects membership for the
OPEB Plan as of October 1, 2021

Active employees 143
Retiree receiving benefits 2
Total 145

Total OPEB Liability  

The Agency changes in the total OPEB liability by source for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.

Total OPEB Liability on September 30, 2022 $ 360,874
Service Cost 16,914
Interest 11,911
Benefit Payments (22,589)
Total OPEB Liability on September 30, 2023 $ 367,110

The required schedule of changes in the Agency's total OPEB liability and related ratios immediately
following the notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the value
of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the total OPEB liability.  
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Actuarial assumptions: The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1,
2021, with update procedures performed by the actuary to roll forward the total OPEB liability to the
measurement date of September 30, 2023.  The following actuarial assumptions apply to all periods included
in the measurement:

Discount Rate 3.25
Overall Payroll Growth 3.4
Inflation rate 2.4
Actuarial cost method Entry Age normal, level percent of salary
Initial healthcare cost rate 6.40% October 2021 Valuation
Ultimate healthcare cost rate Rate range from 6.50 to 5.60 in fiscal year 2031

Mortality rates were based on the PubG.H-2010 General below Median Employee scale MP-2018 for females
and PubG.H-2010 General below median employee scape MP-2018, set back 1 year for males.

Discount rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.25% as of the measurement
date of September 30, 2023.  This rate was determined using an index rate of 20-year, tax-exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA or higher - which was 3.25% as determined by the
application GO Index Rate as of September 30, 2023. 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost rate trend.
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, calculated using the discount rate, as well as
what the Authority’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate or healthcare
cost rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate.

The following table represents the sensitivity analysis discussed above as of October 1, 2021

1%
Decrease

Current
Discount

Rate
(3.25%)

1%
Increase

1% Decrease - Healthcare cost rate trend (5.50%) $ - $ 328,520 $ -
Agency Total OPEB Liability 390,137 367,110 344,978
1% Increase - Healthcare cost rate trend (7.50%) - 412,773 -
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14. Risk Management 

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Agency has transferred the risk to
outside parties through the purchase of various types of insurance coverage. The Agency uses a single broker,
Risk Management Associates, Inc. dba Public Risk Insurance Agency to solicit, evaluate and recommend
policies for all types of coverage required by the Agency.  The Agency purchases the following insurance
coverage, from various carriers: property insurance, inland marine, boiler and machinery insurance,
commercial general liability, business auto liability and physical damage, marine hull and watercraft coverage,
employment practice liability, public official liability, government crime coverage, fuel storage tank coverage,
worker’s compensation and cyber liability. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage
from the prior year. Except as discussed in Note 15, no settlements have exceeded insurance coverage over
the past four years.

15. Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation  

The Agency is a party to various lawsuits, claims, and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
These actions relate primarily to eminent domain, construction claims, disputes, and personnel matters.
Except as discussed in Note 16, any losses that may be incurred in connection with these matters are deemed
by management to not be material to the Agency’s financial statements.

In fiscal year, 2023, Tampa Bay Water was a plaintiff in a case against several manufacturers and sellers of
polyfluoroalkyl substances or “PFAS” chemicals based on the good-faith belief that the defendants have
discharged PFAS into, or are otherwise responsible for PFAS being released into, the waters and environment
that serve as the supply sources for Tampa Bay Water’s water supply system. The lawsuit is styled Tampa Bay
Water v. E.I. Dupont de Nemours and Company, et al., Case No. 2:20-cv-1867 RMG, United States District
Court for the District of South Carolina, Charleston Division. The complaint includes counts for strict
liability, failure to warn, design defect, negligence, private nuisance, public nuisance, and fraudulent
conveyance. Discovery is ongoing and proposed settlements are pending with several defendants.. 

Grant Funds  

The Agency is subject to audit examination by funding agencies to determine compliance with grant
conditions. In the event that expense would be disallowed, repayment could be required.
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Operations and Maintenance Agreements  

Desalination Plant

The 20-year Operation, Maintenance, and Management (OM&M) Services Agreement for operation of the
desalination plant with American Water-Acciona Agua, LLC, approved by the Board of Directors in 2004,
went into effect as of November 8, 2007 with an expiration date in November 2024. Under this agreement,
American Water-Acciona Agua, LLC operates and maintains the plant, and the Agency will pay a service fee
consisting of a base OM&M charge, certain pass-through charges, maintenance reserve fund charges, and
various fee adjustments. The base OM&M charge will be adjusted at the beginning of each contract year
based on certain labor and plant cost indexes. In July 2023 the Board of Directors approved an amendment
to the contract that will extend the agreement for five years until November 2029 and rename the operator
U.S. Water-Acciona Seawater Desalination Partners LLC, with U.S. Water Services Corporation replacing
American Water Enterprises, LLC, as 50% owner of the operating company. 

The key points of the amendment are: 

 The agreement will be extended, and US Water will replace American Water through November 2029;

 US Water will provide a $35 million performance and payment Guaranty that would remain in place
through November 2029; 

 American Water will maintain a payment Guaranty in the amount of $10 million through December 2026;

 The joint venture operator would continue with US Water replacing American Water under the name
U.S. Water-Acciona Seawater Desalination Partners, LLC;

 American Water would remain liable for payment of any claims that result from actions or events
occurring prior to their leaving the joint venture, and US Water would assume liability for performance
and payment claims arising due to events or actions occurring after they join the joint venture. 

 Along with responsibility for maintaining the two replacement funds: Major Equipment Renewal and
Replacement Fund (MERR) and the Reverse Osmosis System Membrane Replacement Fund (ROSMR).  
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Operations and Maintenance Agreements (continued)  

The contract can be terminated for convenience with 90 days’ notice and payment for all services performed,
reimbursable expenses due, a termination fee of $1 million gradually declining to zero after 15 years and
demobilization fee of $50,000. Total operating fees under this contract was $6,884,715 for 2023. $5,190,192
was paid to American Water-Acciona Agua LLC for operations from October 1, 2022 through August 31,
2023, and $1,694,523 was paid to U.S. Water-Acciona Seawater Desalination Partners LLC for operations
starting September 1, 2023. In the agreement it states that the operating company will maintain two reserve
funds for the benefit of Tampa Bay Water, one which will support the cost of making major equipment
renewals and replacements to the Facility, and the other for replacing the reverse osmosis system membranes
in the Facility. Funds are added to the Major Equipment Renewal, Repair and Replacement (MERR) Fund
and the Reverse Osmosis System Membrane Replacement (ROSMR) Fund each month in accordance with
the service fee formula in Section 11.1 of the agreement.  The operating company shall maintain the funds in
a manner that corresponds with the schedule of activities, actions and amounts set forth in the Major
Equipment Renewal, Repair and Replacement Schedule and the Reverse Osmosis System Membrane
Replacement Schedule. The balance in the MERR fund was $843,052 for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2023 and the balance in the ROSM Reserve fund was $3,328,310 for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2023.
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Operations and Maintenance Agreements (continued)  

Surface Water Treatment Plant

The Agency is a party to an Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Agreement with Veolia Water North
America for the operation of its Surface Water Treatment Plant. The agreement, which became effective in
2004, provides for the payment by the Agency of a service fee that includes a base O&M charge that is
payable regardless of plant production levels and several variable and pass-through cost components. The
base O&M charge and certain other cost components increase yearly based on an index directly related to the
expense. In August 2022, the Board approved an amendment to the agreement which extends the agreement
another five years, through January 15, 2028. The agreement is fully cancelable with 90 days’ notice, payment
of all accrued service fees, and any demobilization costs. Expense under this agreement was $7,842,134 for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. In the agreement it states that Veolia Water North America will
maintain a reserve fund for the benefit of Tampa Bay Water, which will support the cost of making major
equipment renewals and replacements to the Facility, in accordance with the repair and replacement plan
required by Section 6.6.2 of the agreement, with funds added to the reserve fund each month pursuant to the
amount included in the Base O&M charge for Major Equipment Renewal and Replacement Reserve Fee
(MERR). The balance in the MERR fund was $1,346,527 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. In the
agreement it states that Veolia Water North America will maintain a reserve fund for the benefit of Tampa
Bay Water, which will support the cost of replacement of one third of all granular activated carbon in the
filters in the facility, in accordance with the granular activated carbon replacement requirements identified in
Schedule 24 of the agreement, with funds added to the reserve fund each month pursuant to the amount
included in the Base O&M charge for the Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) Reserve Fee. The balance in the
GAC fund was $2,515,257 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.

16. Litigation Settlements and Insurance Recoveries 

In fiscal year 2023, the Agency received a total of $12,682 from insurance recoveries due to minor vehicle
accident claims. 
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September 30
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Agency’s proportion of the net
pension liability %0.03072 %0.03080 %0.03032 %0.02809 %0.02681 %0.02669 %0.02516 %0.02342 %0.02418

Agency’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability $12,241,602 $11,461,170 $ 2,290,346 $12,176,123 $ 9,232,885 $ 8,035,499 $ 7,442,181 $ 5,913,769 $ 3,122,547

Agency’s covered payroll $13,374,816 $12,899,708 $12,201,112 $11,556,592 $11,129,829 $ 10,703,843 $10,340,447 $ 9,400,899 $ 8,689,420

Agency’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll %91.53 %88.00 %18.00 %105.00 %82.00 %75.00 %71.00 %62.00 %35.94

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability %82.38 %82.49 %96.40 %78.85 %82.61 %83.89 %83.89 %84.88 %92.00

The Agency implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, as of October 1,
2015; accordingly, only nine years of data are available. The amounts above are determined as of September 30 of the previous fiscal year.
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2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required

contribution $ 1,551,593 $ 1,308,609 $ 1,494,374 $ 1,367,180 $ 1,117,522 $ 1,026,036 $ 949,710 $ 846,235 $ 746,403 $ 693,019

Contributions in relation to
the contractually required
contribution (1,551,593) (1,308,609) (1,494,374) (1,367,180) (1,117,522) (1,026,036) (949,710) (846,235) (746,403) (693,019)

Contribution deficiency
(excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Agency covered payroll $ 13,603,548 $ 12,637,722 $ 12,399,694 $ 12,201,112 $ 11,556,592 $ 11,129,829 $ 10,703,843 $ 10,340,447 $ 9,400,899 $ 8,689,420

Contributions as a
percentage of covered
payroll %11.41 %10.35 %12.05 %11.21 %9.67 %9.22 %8.87 %8.18 %7.94 %7.98

(1) Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of September 30.
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September 30
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Agency’s proportion of the net
pension liability %0.03376 %0.03539 %0.03523 %0.03468 %0.03408 %0.03394 %0.03301 %0.03163 %0.03044

Agency’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ 5,361,525 $ 3,749,051 $ 4,321,004 $ 4,234,901 $ 3,813,587 $ 3,592,426 $ 3,529,306 $ 3,686,822 $ 3,104,772

Agency’s covered payroll $13,374,816 $12,899,708 $12,201,112 $11,556,592 $11,129,829 $ 10,703,843 $10,340,447 $ 9,400,899 $ 8,689,420

Agency’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll %40.09 %29.00 %35.00 %36.00 %34.00 %33.00 %34.00 %39.00 %35.73

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability %4.12 %4.81 %3.56 %3.00 %1.64 %1.64 %1.64 %0.97 %0.50

The Agency implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, as of October 1,
2015; accordingly, only nine years of data are available. The amounts above are determined as of September 30 of the previous fiscal year.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Schedule of Agency Contributions – Health Insurance Subsidy Program

Last 10 Fiscal Years(1)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required

contribution $ 236,725 $ 209,829 $ 205,835 $ 202,538 $ 191,839 $ 184,755 $ 177,684 $ 171,651 $ 156,055 $ 109,487

Contributions in relation to
the contractually required
contribution (236,725) (209,829) (205,835) (202,538) (191,839) (184,755) (177,684) (171,651) (156,055) (109,487)

Contribution deficiency
(excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Agency covered payroll $ 13,603,548 $ 12,637,722 $ 12,399,694 $ 12,201,112 $ 11,556,592 $ 11,129,829 $ 10,703,843 $ 10,340,447 $ 9,400,899 $ 8,689,420

Contributions as a
percentage of covered
payroll %1.74 %1.66 %1.66 %1.66 %1.66 %1.66 %1.66 %1.66 %1.66 %1.26

(1) Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of September 30.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Notes to Required Supplementary Information – Pension

September 30, 2023

Changes of Benefit Terms 

There were no changes in benefits over the periods presented.

Changes of Assumptions 

There were no changes in assumptions from June 30, 2022, to June 30, 2023. The inflation rate assumption
remained the same at 2.4%, the real growth assumption was 0.65%, and the overall payroll growth rate
assumption remained at 3.25%. The long-term expected rate of return stayed at 6.70% and the municipal rate
used to determine the HIS total pension liability increased to 3.65% from 3.54%.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Schedule of Changes in the Agency's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Last 10 Fiscal Years (1)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Service cost $ 16,914 $ 33,546 $ 32,412 $ 24,117 $ 23,301 $ 23,301
Interest on total OPEB liability 11,911 11,605 10,698 12,432 11,111 10,376
Differences between expected and actual experience - (45,613) - 2,390 - -
Changes of assumptions or other input - (20,915) - 20,413 - -
Benefit payments (22,589) (12,382) (10,170) (10,132) (13,143) (15,051)
Net change in OPEB liability $ 6,236 $ (33,759) $ 32,940 $ 49,220 $ 21,269 $ 18,626
Total OPEB liability - beginning $ 360,874 $ 394,633 $ 361,693 $ 312,473 $ 291,204 $ 272,578
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 367,110 $ 360,874 $ 394,633 $ 361,693 $ 312,473 $ 291,204
Covered-employee payroll $ 15,109,900 $ 14,343,050 $ 13,195,474 $ 12,749,250 $ 12,523,808 $ 12,100,298
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll %2.43 %2.52 %2.99 %2.84 %2.50 %2.41

(1) Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of September 30. The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
There are no assets accumulated in a trust to pay related benefits for the OPEB Plan.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule Fiscal Year 2023 (Unaudited) 
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Tampa Bay Water
(A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Enterprise Funds

Approved
Budget

2023

Final
Budget (1)

2023

Actual
Amounts

2023

Variance
with

Final Budget
Positive

(Negative)
Source of Funds
Water Sales $ 185,847,755 $ 185,847,755 $ 186,608,205 $ 760,450
Additional Credits/Surcharges 42,000 42,000 53,205 11,205
TBC - Sale of Water 392,000 392,000 326,508 (65,492)
Interest Income 1,931,424 1,931,424 3,368,312 1,436,888
Litigation & Insurance Recoveries - - 12,682 12,682
Grant SWFWMD - - 653,084 653,084
Subtotal 188,213,179 188,213,179 191,021,996 2,808,817
Transfers In from Rate Stabilization Account 4,046,205 20,453,326 20,453,326 -
Est. Unencumbered Funds from Prior Year - 4,046,205 4,046,205 -
Total Sources $ 192,259,384 $ 212,712,710 $ 215,521,526 $ 2,808,817
Use of Funds
Personnel Services $ 23,728,800 $ 24,000,938 $ 23,249,639 $ 751,300
Materials & Supplies 3,474,026 3,693,443 3,050,834 642,609
Professional Services 33,990,491 46,094,826 30,656,983 15,437,843
Repairs & Other Services 8,349,824 9,773,351 8,204,852 1,568,499
Rent & Insurance 2,512,379 2,757,809 2,509,929 247,880
Legal Services 655,000 654,980 345,132 309,848
Capital Expense 1,160,025 2,434,178 988,818 1,445,359
Total Debt Service-Bonds 76,009,062 76,009,795 76,009,062 733
Acquisition Credit to Member Governments 10,231,558 10,231,558 10,231,558 -
Water Quality Credit to Members 48,000 48,000 48,000 -
Water Treatment Chemicals - Variable Cost 15,899,383 18,442,348 21,077,915 (2,635,567)
Power / Electricity - Variable Cost 15,390,261 17,760,909 14,259,095 3,501,814
Water for Resale - Variable Cost 534,500 534,500 566,350 (31,850)
Subtotal 191,983,309 212,436,635 191,198,168 21,238,467
Transfer Out to Capital Improvement Fund - - 675,000 (675,000)
Transfer Out to R&R Fund 276,075 276,075 276,075 -
Transfer Out to Rate Stabilization Account - - 23,348,989 (23,348,989)
Transfer Out to Utility Reserve - - 23,295 (23,295)
Total Uses $ 192,259,384 $ 212,712,710 $ 215,521,527 $ (2,808,818)

Notes :
(1) Revised budget includes prior year purchase orders carried forward and all approved budget transfers.
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Tampa Bay Water's Adopted Budget 

In June 2022, The Board of Directors (Board) adopted a $192.3 million budget for Fiscal Year 2023. The
budget was adopted in accordance with Section 2.08 of the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement. The 2023 budget adheres to the budget policies and budgetary controls adopted by the
Board for the Fiscal Year starting October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 2023.

Budget Basis 

The basis for developing and adopting the annual budget for Tampa Bay Water is established by the
Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement. This requires that the budget be prepared primarily on an
accrual basis, which is similar to the Agency’s annual financial statements. Notable differences between
the budget basis and the GAAP basis used for financial reporting are as follows:

 Principal payments on long-term debt are treated as current expense for the budget basis, as
opposed to being recorded as a reduction of outstanding liabilities for the GAAP basis.

 Capital expense funded from the rate are treated as current expense under the budget basis, but
are treated as acquisition of capital assets under the GAAP basis.

 Capital expense funded from debt proceeds are not reflected under the budget basis and are
capital asset acquisitions under the GAAP basis.

 The budget basis includes only that interest income which is available for use for budgetary
purposes. The GAAP basis reflects all interest income, including that restricted as to purpose, and
as adjusted for interest income which is offset against interest costs allocated to construction
projects in accordance with GAAP.

 The budget basis includes only interest expense that is to be paid from the rate and budgeted
revenue sources.  Interest expense under the GAAP basis may also include interest costs being
paid from bond proceeds (capitalized interest) and will exclude any interest costs that are treated
as a cost of assets in the construction phase.

 The budget basis also reflects transfers to and from various reserves, which are not revenue and
expense under the GAAP basis.

Budget Process 

Section 2.08. Article II, Creation and Governance, of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement
establishes the procedures and requirements for the development of an annual budget for Tampa Bay
Water. The requirements are as follows:

 Prior to July 1 of each year, the General Manager shall prepare and deliver to the Board a
balanced tentative budget for Tampa Bay Water covering its proposed operating and other
financial requirements for the ensuing fiscal year. The tentative budget shall identify:

 The rate at which Quality Water will be sold to Member Governments during such fiscal year;
and
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Budget Process 

 The rate to be charged to the City of Tampa for water provided through the Tampa Bypass
Canal pumping facility during such fiscal year.

 The Board shall publish a notice of its intention to adopt the budget and shall provide copies of
the notice and tentative budget to each Member Government on or before the first publication
date. The notice shall include a summary of the tentative budget; specify the rates at which
Quality Water will be sold to the Member Governments; and identify the time, date, and place at
which the public may appear before the Board and state their objections to or support of the
budget and rates. The notice shall be published once a week for two consecutive weeks within
thirty (30) days of the public hearing, in any newspaper qualified to accept legal advertisements in
each county in the jurisdiction of Tampa Bay Water, the last insertion of which shall appear not
less than one week prior to the date set by the Board for the hearing on the proposed budget and
rates.

 At the time, date and place specified in the notice, the Board shall conduct a public hearing and
thereafter may consider adoption of the budget and rates with any amendments it deems
advisable. Unless otherwise authorized by the Board, the final budget and rates shall be adopted
by August 1.

 The adopted budget shall be the operating and fiscal guide for Tampa Bay Water for the ensuing
fiscal year. The Board may amend the budget at any regular or special meeting; provided however,
that prior to approving any budget amendment that increases the total budget for any fiscal year
(other than a budget amendment appropriating grant funds or the proceeds of debt obligations),
the Board shall provide notice and conduct an additional public hearing in the manner described
above. 

Budget Amendments 

Agency policy allows the transfer of budget between sub-categories within a single budgetary category
(e.g. within Professional Services from Hydrological Services to Ecological Services) with the approval of
the General Manager.  Transfers of budget between major categories (e.g. from Professional Services to
Materials & Supplies or to Repairs & Other Services) must be submitted to the Agency’s board for
approval regardless of dollar amount.  Any increase to the total budget also requires Board approval and
a public hearing.

Monthly Financial Reporting 

In accordance with best financial management practices, The Finance Department provides monthly
financial reports to the Board. The monthly reports provide the Board with a clear comparison of actual
expenses to budgeted amounts as well as a means of monitoring water production for each member
government and revenues received from water sales.
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Operating Division/Departments 

Operating Divisions / Departments
Approved

2023 Budget
Transfers &
Adjustments

Final 2023
Budget 2023 Actuals

Variance with
Final Budget
and Actuals

Positive
(Negative)

Water Production Division $ 62,181,008 $ 9,124,968 $ 71,305,976 $ 67,205,604 $ 4,100,372
Planning & Projects Division 8,249,781 4,177,600 12,427,381 6,920,090 5,507,291
Information Technology Division 6,216,536 223,518 6,440,054 6,069,414 370,640
Finance & Administration Division 7,030,570 198,581 7,229,151 8,243,672 (1,014,522)
Science Division 12,418,575 6,361,992 18,780,567 10,901,859 7,878,708
Business Stragegies Division 8,306,056 494,617 8,800,673 4,753,760 4,046,913
Office of General Manager 775,163 (145,432) 629,731 518,017 111,714
General Counsel 565,000 16,750 581,750 345,132 236,618
Debt-Bonds & Acquisition Credits 86,240,620 732 86,241,353 86,240,620 733
Net Funds Transfers In/Out 276,075 276,075 276,075 24,323,359 (24,047,285)

$ 192,259,384 $ 20,729,401 $ 212,712,710 $ 215,521,527 $ (2,808,816)
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III. STATISTICAL SECTION 
 

x Financial Trends (Tables 1-7) 

These tables and charts contain trend information to help the reader 
XQGHUVWDQG KRZ 7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V SHUIRUPDQFH KDV FKDQJHG RYHU WLPH  

x Revenue Capacity (Tables 8-10) 

These tables and charts contain information to help the readers assess 
7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V PRVW VLJQLILFDQW UHYHQXH VRXUFHV  

x Debt Capacity (Tables 11-12) 

These tables and charts present information to help the reader assess the 
ability of Tampa Bay Water to pay debt service on outstanding debt. 

x General Information (Tables 13-15) 

These tables and charts contain service and infrastructure data to help the 
reader understand how information in its financial report relates to Tampa 
Bay Water provided services and activities. 

x Demographic and Economic Information (Tables 16-17) 

These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
XQGHUVWDQG WKH HQYLURQPHQW LQ ZKLFK 7DPSD %D\ :DWHU·V ILQDQFLDO 

activities take place. 

The statistical Section of Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Tampa 
Bay Water is intended to provide financial statement users with additional 
historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in using information in the 
financial statements, notes to financial statements, and required supplementary 
information to understand and assess the agencies economic condition. 

 

The Statistical Section is unaudited. 
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 1, Net Position - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Net Position

Fiscal Year
Net Investment in

Capital Assets Restricted Unrestricted
Total Net
Position

Changes in Net
Position

% of Change in
Net Position

2023 $ 774,701,139 $ 131,998,096 $ 27,548,926 $ 934,248,161 $ 34,390,325 %3.82
2022 752,248,248 114,797,114 32,812,474 899,857,836 23,238,728 %2.65
2021 720,309,824 119,469,822 36,839,462 876,619,108 29,852,763 %3.53
2020 691,056,939 118,410,787 37,298,619 846,766,345 32,868,144 %4.04
2019 669,942,751 106,080,103 37,875,350 813,898,204 24,392,183 %3.09
2018 659,267,732 92,933,057 37,305,229 789,506,018 4,419,369 %0.56
2017 662,029,752 86,907,666 36,149,231 785,086,649 8,724,704 %1.12
2016 (1) 686,688,585 55,830,781 33,842,580 776,361,946 7,490,450 %0.97
2015 (2) 692,643,905 42,852,884 33,374,707 768,871,496 3,612,307 %0.47
2014 686,131,584 43,407,942 35,719,663 765,259,189 21,081,985 %2.83

Notes:

(1) Fiscal year 2016 net position was restated to reflect a change in bond premium amortization to the Effective Interest Method and to record. Escrowed Reserve funds held with our facility operators, Veolia Water
North America and American Water-Pridesa, LLC. Cumulative effect on net position was an increase of $5,576,805.

(2) The beginning net position for fiscal year 2015 was restated to reflect the implementation of GASB 68, which was a decrease of $5,311,035 in net position.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 2, Restricted Assets - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Restricted Assets

Fiscal Year
Construction

Funds Sinking Funds
Renewal and

Replacement Fund

Capital
Improvement

Fund
Energy Savings

Fund

Operations and
Maintenance

Reserve Debt Service
Release Funds

2023 $ 133,512,671 $ 57,998,210 $ 25,710,196 $ 24,124,712 $ 1,065,460 $ 5,304,024 $ 21,809,838
2022 3,365,263 55,206,408 32,067,931 29,892,651 749,537 4,880,457 -
2021 5,112,894 52,695,165 35,265,605 34,427,826 1,416,283 4,562,751 -
2020 7,217,796 52,263,443 36,598,924 33,328,035 1,162,147 4,442,923 -
2019 8,802,523 51,496,138 33,914,245 27,141,633 823,919 4,330,051 -
2018 11,500,027 50,714,307 28,774,711 21,920,586 553,050 4,041,153 -
2017 14,293,565 49,962,167 27,014,323 18,026,011 381,216 3,892,858 -
2016 (1) 19,933,463 49,673,607 26,948,014 14,879,816 253,127 4,035,616 -
2015 27,225,121 50,208,519 26,350,159 11,846,831 179,695 4,476,199 -
2014 42,326,766 52,030,035 24,776,568 12,500,450 174,621 5,127,419 -

Fiscal Year
Debt Service

Reserves Desal - Reserves SWTP - Reserves

Hillsborough
County Joint

Project Agreement

Debt Service
Tranch 3 Issue

Costs
Total Restricted

Assets
2023 $ 46,616,302 $ 4,171,362 $ 3,861,783 $ 74,814 $ 41,052 $ 324,290,424
2022 67,468,838 3,102,700 3,702,535 - - 200,436,320
2021 71,250,324 1,752,959 4,766,060 - - 211,249,867
2020 71,824,849 2,629,810 5,510,019 - - 214,977,946
2019 71,586,689 2,330,924 4,577,858 - - 205,003,980
2018 70,475,606 2,131,412 4,217,145 - - 194,327,997
2017 70,837,325 2,129,958 5,078,300 - - 191,615,724
2016 (1) 71,289,314 2,072,486 7,583,722 - - 196,669,165
2015 73,169,250 - - - - 193,455,774
2014 73,716,549 - - - - 210,652,408
Notes:

(1) Fiscal year 2016 restricted position was restated to reflect in adding the recording of Escrowed Reserve funds held with our facility operators, Veolia Water North America and American Water-Pridesa, LLC.
Cumulative effect on restricted assets was increased by $9,656,208.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 2, Restricted Assets - Last 10 Fiscal Years
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 3, Revenues and Capital Contributions - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Operating Revenues Nonoperating Revenues

Fiscal Year Water Sales

Rate
Stabilization

Transfers

Total
Operating
Revenues

Investment
Income (1)

Litigation and
Insurance
Recoveries

Arbitrage
Recovery Other

Total
Nonoperating

Revenues
2023 $ 187,134,890 $ 1,150,542 $ 188,285,432 $ 11,189,485 $ 12,682 $ - $ - $ 11,202,167
2022 179,602,833 (4,924,749) 174,678,084 (6,569,075) 7,979 - - (6,561,096)
2021 173,170,025 (5,450,399) 167,719,626 174,761 36,841 - - 211,602
2020 170,361,888 (1,737,848) 168,624,040 5,256,272 19,851 - 101,296 5,377,419
2019 166,239,557 (5,274,114) 160,965,443 7,017,637 6,476 - 37,966 (7,049,127)
2018 160,868,419 (2,955,840) 157,912,579 1,886,175 18,178 - - 1,904,353
2017 156,811,001 (660,622) 156,150,379 1,179,127 1,084,167 - - 2,263,294
2016 153,320,480 1,745,750 155,066,230 1,201,511 1,188,148 - - 2,389,659
2015 154,724,559 (1,172,575) 153,551,984 1,227,705 979,352 - - 2,207,057
2014 155,333,597 5,849,796 161,183,393 732,928 22 - - 732,950

Fiscal Year
Capital

Contributions

Total Revenues
& Capital

Contributions

2023 $ 5,649,978 $ 205,137,577

2022 919,498 169,036,486

2021 2,680,474 170,611,702

2020 708,064 174,709,523

2019 460,877 168,488,399

2018 - 159,816,932

2017 590,000 159,003,672

2016 248,302 157,704,191

2015 - 155,759,041

2014 - 161,916,343

Notes:

(1) Net of Realized, Unrealized and Capitalized Amount.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 4, Total Expenses - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Total Expenses
Fiscal Year Operating Expenses Depreciation Interest Expense (1) Other, Net Total Expenses
2023 $ 100,161,602 $ 29,425,572 $ 33,983,035 $ 7,177,043 $ 170,747,252
2022 85,912,868 29,043,530 29,645,180 1,196,180 145,797,758
2021 76,957,044 29,076,736 32,625,230 2,099,930 140,758,940
2020 77,017,105 29,953,938 34,870,336 - 141,841,379
2019 69,565,461 29,735,308 44,795,447 - 144,096,216
2018 70,533,968 30,210,346 48,619,139 6,034,110 155,397,563
2017 69,098,081 29,906,334 49,956,074 1,331,299 150,291,788
2016 65,589,515 29,534,326 53,797,721 6,868,984 155,790,546
2015 64,117,276 28,692,538 53,173,194 852,691 146,835,699
2014 63,694,839 24,836,437 47,613,797 4,689,285 140,834,358
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 5, Operating Department/Program Expenses by Major Expense Category - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Operating Department/Program Expenses By Major Expense Category

Fiscal Year Personnel Services
Frs Pension
Adjustments

Operating Materials
& Supplies

Outside Professional
Services

Repairs/
Maintenance and
Other Services

Rentals, Leases
and Insurance Legal Services

2023 $ 20,200,412 $ 3,049,226 $ 3,050,834 $ 40,396,238 $ 13,735,590 $ 2,509,929 $ 345,132
2022 18,360,465 643,964 2,650,254 34,416,165 8,301,319 2,176,221 369,220
2021 17,539,396 (707,070) 2,376,390 31,845,389 6,407,164 2,025,442 363,802
2020 17,829,234 2,009,389 2,037,042 27,972,048 6,563,782 1,956,275 301,613
2019 16,360,679 1,798,225 2,211,837 25,936,375 5,196,973 1,683,896 359,880
2018 15,342,073 975,596 2,047,959 28,074,782 4,796,011 1,502,831 379,962
2017 14,745,350 906,118 2,115,341 27,379,411 5,106,758 1,785,441 315,239
2016 13,783,537 576,499 1,880,699 26,961,759 5,681,474 1,749,423 302,054
2015 12,823,076 30,088 2,070,255 26,954,069 4,400,801 1,771,166 292,042
2014 12,113,326 - 2,242,137 27,594,557 4,155,234 1,821,898 321,258

Operating Department/Program Expenses By Major Expense Category

Fiscal Year Capital Expense (1)
Capital Offset

Account 
Variable Cost

Expenses
Water Quality

Expense Other Expenses (2) 
Total Operating

Expenses
2023 $ 11,930,907 $ (30,671,125) $ 35,903,360 $ 48,000 $ (336,902) $ 100,161,602
2022 12,700,516 (21,459,714) 28,045,608 48,000 (339,149) 85,912,868
2021 11,463,686 (17,139,487) 23,000,929 48,000 (266,597) 76,957,044
2020 5,555,773 (8,894,293) 22,008,410 48,000 (370,168) 77,017,105
2019 4,229,071 (7,797,035) 19,832,479 48,000 (294,918) 69,565,461
2018 3,413,977 (6,061,331) 20,297,263 48,000 (283,155) 70,533,969
2017 9,738,530 (13,795,833) 21,039,688 48,000 (298,781) 69,085,262
2016 8,126,783 (11,938,629) 18,717,241 48,000 (299,324) 65,589,515
2015 12,729,402 (16,217,553) 19,390,716 48,000 (174,787) 64,117,276
2014 102,686,949 (109,214,448) 22,113,407 48,000 (187,479) 63,694,839

Notes:

(1) Includes expenses incurred with bond funds
(2) Miscellaneous income, sales of surplus materials and supplies, and rental income.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 6, Total Capital Assets - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Capital Assets Not Depreciated Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Fiscal Year Land
Construction-

in-progress

Water
Capacity
Rights

Total Capital
Assets Not

Depreciated
Land

Improvements

Wells And
Wellfield

Improvements

Water Treatment
And Pumping

Facilities
Transmisison

Mains Buildings
2023 $ 79,994,554 $ 64,714,551 $316,397,360 $ 461,106,465 $ 3,303,176 $ 137,657,315 $ 708,502,518 $ 339,178,229 $ 21,854,801
2022 79,242,635 48,575,437 316,397,360 444,215,432 3,294,936 135,263,679 706,061,917 339,178,229 21,759,959
2021 79,238,385 35,117,616 316,397,360 430,753,361 3,294,936 135,263,679 701,491,957 339,178,229 21,812,576
2020 79,237,818 24,528,573 316,397,360 420,163,751 3,294,936 134,802,011 700,111,688 339,178,229 19,732,806
2019 78,687,882 21,084,854 316,397,360 416,170,096 3,294,936 134,802,011 696,852,407 339,178,229 19,632,819
2018 77,944,762 18,348,029 316,397,360 412,690,151 3,294,936 133,095,065 696,450,615 339,178,229 19,555,850
2017 78,648,965 21,390,285 318,058,360 418,097,610 3,294,936 139,107,959 694,211,826 339,942,372 19,555,850
2016 78,809,999 14,369,617 318,058,360 411,237,976 3,294,937 139,107,959 690,138,664 339,673,167 19,555,850
2015 79,009,272 25,046,156 318,058,360 422,113,788 3,294,937 135,730,911 679,588,963 339,673,167 19,555,850
2014 79,011,824 162,427,790 318,058,360 559,497,974 3,294,937 132,464,714 671,568,091 339,673,167 19,555,850

Fiscal Year Reservoir
Other Equipment

and software

Right to Use
Subscribed Based
IT Agreements Right-to-use

leased land (1)

Right-to-use
leased equipment

(1)

Accumulated
Depreciation/
Amortization

Total
Depreciable

Capital Assets,
Net

Total Capital
Assets

2023 $ 304,564,796 $ 23,320,954 $ 1,128,305 $ 1,374,298 $ 220,293 $ 531,435,821 $ 1,009,668,864 $ 1,470,775,329
2022 304,564,797 21,973,276 - 1,323,343 63,252 502,521,382 1,029,575,409 1,473,790,841
2021 303,216,166 22,199,828 - - - 474,378,767 1,052,078,603 1,482,831,964
2020 303,216,166 22,530,167 - - - 447,759,282 1,075,106,720 1,495,270,471
2019 302,995,543 21,692,652 - - - 418,267,917 1,100,180,681 1,516,350,777
2018 302,914,591 21,073,029 - - - 389,835,643 1,125,726,672 1,538,416,823
2017 297,136,654 20,632,045 - - - 363,334,554 1,150,547,087 1,568,644,697
2016 297,129,318 20,061,991 - - - 334,027,402 1,174,934,484 1,586,172,460
2015 296,650,557 19,150,872 - - - 305,328,137 1,188,317,120 1,610,430,908
2014 155,663,688 18,923,170 - - - 277,687,083 1,063,456,534 1,622,954,508
Notes:

(1) According to Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) the agency had to implement pronouncement 87 related to leases.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 7, Total Net Investment in Capital Assets - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

Property, Plant,
Equipment and Water
Capacity Rights, Net

of Depreciation

Bond Issue
Costs
(Net)

Deferred
Outflow

Long Term Debt (All
Asset Acquisition Related
Except Reserve Funding)

Swaption
Payable

2023 1,470,775,330 $ 39,914 $ - $ (869,059,030) $ -
2022 1,475,177,436 56,956 - (789,253,670) -
2021 1,482,831,963 79,614 - (837,321,820) -
2020 1,495,270,471 107,593 - (882,870,430) -
2019 1,516,350,777 135,750 - (926,637,332) -
2018 1,538,416,823 173,767 - (960,658,735) -
2017 1,568,644,697 216,894 - (990,377,397) -
2016 (1) 1,586,172,460 265,044 - (990,342,388) -
2015 1,610,430,908 319,040 - (1,015,243,200) -
2014 1,622,954,508 622,906 - (1,044,813,707) -

Fiscal Year

Long-Term Debt Applicable to Cash
& Investments of Debt Service

Reserve and Unexpended
Construction Funds

Accounts
Payable

Construction
Funds Lease Payable (2)

TotalNet
Investment in
Capital Assets

2023 $ 180,170,024 $ (5,015,362) $ (2,209,737) $ 774,701,139
2022 70,834,102 (3,169,587) (1,396,988) 752,248,249
2021 76,363,218 (1,643,151) - 720,309,824
2020 79,042,646 (493,341) - 691,056,939
2019 80,389,213 (295,657) - 669,942,751
2018 81,975,633 (639,756) - 659,267,732
2017 85,130,890 (1,585,331) - 662,029,753
2016 (1) 91,222,777 (629,307) - 686,688,585
2015 100,394,372 (3,257,215) - 692,643,905
2014 116,043,308 (8,675,432) - 686,131,583

Notes:

(1) Fiscal year 2016 unamortized bond issue premium was restated to reflect a change in bond premium amortization to the Effective Interest Method.
The change resulted in an increase of $4,079,403 in unamortized bond issue premium.

(2)   According to Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) the agency had to implement pronouncement 87 related to leases
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TABLE 7, Total Net Investment in Capital Assets - Last 10 Fiscal Years
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 8, Schedule of Rates - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Water Rate Per
1,000 Gallons (1)

2023 $ 2.5781
2022 $ 2.5634
2021 $ 2.5590
2020 $ 2.5590
2019 $ 2.5590
2018 $ 2.5590
2017 $ 2.5590
2016 $ 2.5590
2015 $ 2.5590
2014 $ 2.5590

Notes:

(1) The rate is set up on a fiscal year basis starting on October 1 st of each year.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 9, Water Sales (Millions of Gallons per Day)

Fiscal Year Ended 2023 Fiscal Year Ended 2014

Member Agency

Water Sales at
Uniform Rate

(million gallons)
Percentage of

Water Sold

Water Sales at
Uniform Rate

(million gallons)
Percentage of

Water Sold

Hillsborough County 79.83 %39.5 50.98 %32.5

Pasco County 35.36 %17.5 24.53 %15.6

Pinellas County 50.73 %25.1 50.94 %32.4

City of Tampa 4.66 %2.3 - %-

City of New Port Richey 3.07 %1.5 2.87 %1.8

City of St. Petersburg 28.55 %14.1 27.74 %17.7

Total Water Sales 202.20 %100.0 157.06 %100.0
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 10, Water Sales by Member - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Pinellas County
Hillsborough

County
City of St.
Petersburg Pasco County City of Tampa

City of New Port
Richey

Total
Water Sales

2023 $ 46,819,502 $ 73,677,410 $ 26,346,991 $ 32,636,839 $ 4,296,240 $ 2,831,223 $ 186,608,205
2022 47,015,336 70,180,618 26,346,736 31,924,563 977,463 2,796,514 179,241,230
2021 46,134,029 66,733,278 25,022,885 31,629,931 33,178 2,979,736 172,533,037
2020 45,596,714 65,401,748 24,495,756 29,978,156 1,544,227 2,785,714 169,802,315
2019 46,515,216 62,196,770 26,486,444 27,881,092 1,548 2,892,261 165,973,331
2018 46,139,263 57,692,991 26,961,032 26,958,492 - 2,735,849 160,487,626
2017 44,340,391 52,035,317 25,476,569 26,235,772 5,430,465 2,616,597 156,135,111
2016 45,936,076 52,414,672 27,143,671 24,681,768 - 2,950,771 153,126,958
2015 48,836,008 51,430,199 27,940,618 23,611,104 - 2,906,630 154,724,559
2014 50,380,122 50,421,414 27,395,744 24,258,660 - 2,835,657 155,291,597
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 11, Short-term and Long-term Debt Outstanding - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal 
Year 2001A Bonds 2004 Bonds 2005 Bonds 2006 Bonds
2023 $ 50,000,000 $ - $ 51,000,000 $ -
2022 50,000,000 - 74,530,000 -
2021 50,000,000 - 96,820,000 -
2020 50,000,000 - 117,960,000 -
2019 50,000,000 5,005,000 132,990,000 -
2018 50,000,000 18,540,000 138,495,000 -
2017 50,000,000 35,465,000 139,650,000 -
2016 50,000,000 47,235,000 145,060,000 355,000
2015 50,000,000 58,415,000 150,205,000 695,000
2014 50,000,000 69,070,000 155,080,000 64,795,000

Short-term and Long-term Debt
Fiscal 
Year 2008 Bonds 2010 Bonds 2011 Bonds 2011A Bonds 2011B Bonds 2013 Bonds 2015A Bonds 2015B Bonds 2016A Bonds
2023 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 180,835,000 $ 89,575,000 $ 96,630,000
2022 - - - - - 75,295,000 180,835,000 90,485,000 96,630,000
2021 - - 12,915,000 40,000 - 75,295,000 180,835,000 91,375,000 96,630,000
2020 - - 25,205,000 46,140,000 - 75,295,000 180,835,000 92,245,000 96,630,000
2019 - 6,395,000 36,915,000 46,175,000 - 75,295,000 180,835,000 93,100,000 96,630,000
2018 - 6,395,000 48,055,000 46,210,000 - 75,295,000 180,835,000 93,945,000 96,630,000
2017 - 6,395,000 58,670,000 46,245,000 - 75,295,000 180,835,000 94,780,000 96,630,000
2016 - 6,395,000 68,785,000 46,275,000 175,000 75,295,000 180,835,000 95,555,000 96,630,000
2015 101,375,000 66,980,000 78,415,000 46,580,000 29,695,000 75,295,000 180,835,000 95,975,000 -
2014 101,375,000 66,980,000 87,585,000 139,760,000 148,270,000 75,295,000 - - -
Continued

132



Short-term and Long-term Debt

Fiscal Year 2016B Bonds 2016C Bonds
2020 Master

Bonds
2022 Bonds Lease Payable

SBITA
Contracts
Payable

Acquisition
Credits

Unamortized
Bond Issue
Premium (1)

2023 31,155,000 55,345,000 113,899,000 122,075,000 1,471,070 738,667 44,260,578 37,525,160
2022 31,405,000 55,345,000 52,942,000 - 1,396,988 - 51,882,449 40,237,758
2021 31,650,000 55,345,000 53,338,000 - - - 59,139,299 45,841,459
2020 31,890,000 55,345,000 6,709,000 - - - 66,048,612 53,248,210
2019 32,125,000 55,345,000 - - - - 72,627,030 60,395,068
2018 32,360,000 55,345,000 - - - - 78,890,400 67,700,612
2017 32,590,000 55,345,000 - - - - 84,858,357 75,389,491
2016 32,785,000 55,345,000 - - - - 90,547,001 83,399,009
2015 - - - - - - 95,970,439 65,530,144
2014 - - - - - - 101,143,501 65,586,394

Short-term and
Long-term Debt

Fiscal Year

Short-term and
Total Long-term

Liabilities
2023 874,509,475
2022 800,984,196
2021 849,223,759
2020 897,550,822
2019 943,832,098
2018 988,696,013
2017 1,032,147,848
2016 1,074,671,010
2015 1,095,965,583
2014 1,124,939,895

Notes :

(1) Fiscal year 2016 unamortized bond issue premium was restated to reflect a change in bond premium amortization to the Effective Interest Method. The change resulted in a increase of $4,079,701 in
unamortized bond issue premium.

(2)  According to Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) the agency had to implement pronouncement 87 related to leases
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 12, Historical Operating Results - Last 5 Fiscal Years

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Revenue

Actual water demand (mgd) 202.2040 188.3330 184.7860 184.0050 173.3370
Uniform Rate (per 1,000 gallons) $ 2.5989 $ 2.5634 $ 2.5590 $ 2.5590 $ 2.5590

Revenue from sale of water 187,134,890 179,602,833 173,170,025 170,361,888 166,239,557
Rate stabilization transfer 1,150,542 (4,924,749) (5,450,399) (1,737,848) (5,274,114)

188,285,432 174,678,084 167,719,626 168,624,040 160,965,443
Purchase price amortization credit (10,231,557) (10,231,557) (10,231,557) (10,231,557) (10,231,557)
Litigation and insurance recoveries 12,682 7,979 36,841 19,851 6,476
Investment revenue - unrestricted (1) 3,368,312 2,263,510 2,943,657 3,738,379 3,804,846
Total Revenue 181,434,869 166,718,016 160,468,567 162,150,713 154,545,208
Operation and maintenance expense (2) (104,458,720) (87,837,183) (77,922,095) (78,983,797) (73,093,862)
Net Revenue 76,976,149 78,880,833 82,546,472 83,166,916 81,451,346
Annual debt service payments Series 2001A bonds 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Annual debt service payments Series 2004 bonds - - - 5,136,381 14,153,056
Annual debt service payments Series 2005 bonds 26,982,075 27,002,125 27,046,450 21,931,125 12,970,838
Annual debt service payments Series 2010 bonds - - - 319,750 319,750
Annual debt service payments Series 2011 bonds - 13,237,875 13,243,000 13,263,000 13,264,250
Annual debt service payments Series 2011A bonds - 40,625 2,294,625 2,295,675 2,296,725
Annual debt service payments Series 2013 bonds 3,619,550 3,619,550 3,619,550 3,619,550 3,619,550
Annual debt service payments Series 2015A bonds 7,611,150 7,611,150 7,611,150 7,611,150 7,611,150
Annual debt service payments Series 2015B bonds 3,643,795 3,643,883 3,641,827 3,642,320 3,645,149
Annual debt service payments Series 2016A bonds 4,356,688 4,356,688 4,356,688 4,356,688 4,356,688
Annual debt service payments Series 2016B bonds 1,332,746 1,333,332 1,333,216 1,332,406 1,336,040
Annual debt service payments Series 2016C bonds 2,767,250 2,767,250 2,767,250 2,767,250 2,767,250
Annual debt service payments Series 2020 Master Bond 16,309,673 1,336,096 146,269 - -
 Annual debt service payments Series 2022 bonds

2,639,175 - - - -
Total Debt Service 72,262,102 67,948,574 69,060,025 69,275,295 69,340,446
Total debt service and reserve requirements 72,262,102 67,948,574 69,060,025 69,275,295 69,340,446
Debt service and reserve coverage (times) 1.07 1.16 1.18 1.19 1.16
Fund Balance (4) 31,340,323 30,811,788 30,152,968 29,314,554 29,652,353
Net revenue plus fund balance $ 108,316,473 $ 109,692,621 $ 112,699,440 $ 112,481,470 $ 111,103,699
Debt Service coverage (times) (times) 1.50 1.61 1.61 1.61 1.58
Note 1:  Investment revenue does not include interest on construction funds or unrealized investment revenue from derivative instruments.
Note 2:  Operation and maintenance expense include capital expense for maintenance of the existing system.
Note 3:  Debt service coverage is calculated on the total debt service requirement, net of any capitalized interest provided from bond proceeds, in accordance with the Bond Resolution.
Note 4:  Fund balance is defined by the Bond Resolution and is calculated as of the prior year-end in accordance with the Bond Resolution.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 13, General Information as of September 30, 2023

Number of member agencies: 6
Cities: 3
Counties: 3

Notes: Each of the countries have two board members and each of the cities have one.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 14, Operating Indicators - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Service Area
(Square Miles)

Miles of
Treated Water

Pipeline

Miles of
Untreated Water

Pipeline

Number of
Service

Connections
Groundwater

Wellfields

Number of
Groundwater

Treatment
Plants

Groundwater
Treatment
Capacity (1)

Desalination
Treatment

Plant

Desalination
Treatment
Capacity

2023 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2022 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2021 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2020 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2019 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2018 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2017 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2016 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2015 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25
2014 2,076 156 115 21 13 6 181 1 25

Fiscal
Year

Hydrogen
Sulfide

Treatment
Plants

Hydrogen
Sulfide

Treatment
Capacity (1)

Number of
Surface Water

Treatment
Plants

Surface Water
Treatment
Capacity (1)

Treated Water
Booster Stations

Untreated Water
Lift/Withdrawal/
Booster Stations

Water Supply
Reservoir

Water Supply
Reservoir
Capacity
(Billion
Gallons)

2023 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2022 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2021 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2020 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2019 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2018 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2017 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2016 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2015 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5
2014 2 80 1 120 4 5 1 15.5

Notes :
(1) Million Gallons per Day.
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 15, Total Water Production - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ground Water Surface Water Desalinated Water

Total Water Production
(Million Gallons

Per Day)
2023 121.4 76.4 4.4 202.2
2022 107.8 73.4 7.1 188.3
2021 110.9 68.6 5.3 184.8
2020 111.8 63.7 8.5 184.0
2019 108.1 58.7 6.6 173.4
2018 105.9 57.9 5.8 169.6
2017 109.7 62.5 7.0 179.2
2016 102.0 57.5 1.3 160.8
2015 102.2 52.9 2.2 157.3
2014 94.0 55.8 9.1 158.9
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 16, Employment by Industry - Fiscal Year 2023 and 2014

Hillsborough County Pasco County Pinellas County
Industry 2023 2014 2023 2014 2023 2014
Utilities 2,812 2,899 830 851 625 699
Construction 44,603 31,607 10,533 7,623 23,984 18,351
Machinery Manufacturing 1,223 1,270 797 843 2,617 3,001
Transportation Equipment Manifacturing 1,571 1,619 124 130 1,456 1,657
Wholesale Trade 36,975 32,741 2,676 2,420 15,400 14,724
Information 18,426 17,003 1,015 956 7,495 7,468
Other Services 25,532 22,502 4,735 4,263 16,456 15,660
Education & Health Services 102,755 86,118 25,607 21,918 80,432 72,787
Financial Activities 80,648 66,230 4,965 4,164 34,319 30,755
Federal Government 15,140 14,663 779 780 6,807 7,146
Local Government 56,149 50,736 16,347 15,266 34,319 33,614
State Government 18,709 17,332 1,791 1,714 5,178 5,200
Leisure and Hospitality 85,913 69,181 16,721 13,751 58,304 50,694
Manufacturing 25,782 25,990 3,190 3,284 27,830 30,292
Chemical, Energy, Plastic, and Rubber Manufacturing 2,816 2,827 294 301 2,840 3,145
Electronic and Electrical Manufacturing 2,747 2,724 305 309 8,400 8,959
Food, Beverage, and Tobacco Manufacturing 5,302 5,338 221 248 1,071 1,034
Furniture and Misc. Manufacturing 3,190 2,869 384 358 5,141 5,297
Metals and Mining Based Manufacturing 5,113 5,394 812 834 2,544 3,088
Textile, Fiber, and Printing Manufacturing 3,822 3,949 253 261 3,763 4,111
Office using Industries 267,687 212,939 21,482 18,144 138,098 118,746
Professional and Business Services 168,423 120,877 13,962 10,230 88,389 68,472
Natural Resources and Mining 480 448 30 28 6 6
Retail Trade 78,120 72,714 21,247 20,198 52,238 52,502
Transportation and Warehousing 16,653 15,692 1,051 984 5,159 5,267
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 134,560 124,046 25,804 24,456 73,426 73,192
Transportation, Warehousing and Utilities 19,465 18,591 1,881 1,835 5,785 5,965
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

TABLE 17, Demographic and Economic Statistic - Last 10 Calendar Years (1)

Hillsborough County

Fiscal Year

County
Population

(in thousands)

Per Capital
Personal Income

(in dollars)
Single Family

Building Permits
Multi Family

Building Permits
Unemployment

Rate

2023 1,595 64,662 10,953 5,176 %3.714
2022 1,564 62,019 10,931 5,154 3.899
2021 1,532 59,485 10,703 4,876 4.700
2020 1,501 57,118 10,384 4,518 5.900
2019 1,469 54,861 10,327 4,194 3.691
2018 1,438 52,035 10,253 4,889 3.855
2017 1,405 48,398 9,154 6,041 4.215
2016 1,374 45,047 6,457 4,554 4.453
2015 1,344 42,467 5,271 4,026 5.041
2014 1,316 41,902 4,411 3,079 5.839

Pasco County

Fiscal Year

County
Population

(in thousands)

Per Capital
Personal Income

(in dollars)
Single Family

Building Permits
Multi Family

Building Permits
Unemployment

Rate

2023 566 55,424 4,355 1,551 %4.265
2022 557 53,017 4,362 1,550 4.478
2021 548 50,752 4,289 1,472 5.000
2020 539 48,657 4,174 1,369 5.600
2019 528 46,695 4,162 1,274 4.239
2018 519 44,211 4,142 1,488 4.428
2017 509 40,897 3,718 1,849 4.841
2016 501 37,924 2,639 1,403 5.115
2015 493 2,639 1,403 - 5.790
2014 485 33,953 1,825 960 6.707

Pinellas County

Fiscal Year

County
Population

(in thousands)

Per Capital
Personal Income

(in dollars)
Single Family

Building Permits
Multi Family

Building Permits
Unemployment

Rate

2023 1,046 74,354 1,579 1,596 %3.696
2022 1,034 71,390 1,589 1,604 3.881
2021 1,022 68,458 1,570 1,531 5.200
2020 1,010 65,688 1,522 1,431 5.500
2019 996 63,222 1,541 1,339 3.674
2018 982 60,134 1,542 1,573 3.837
2017 970 55,984 1,391 1,965 4.195
2016 958 52,190 993 1,498 4.432
2015 947 49,252 821 1,341 5.018
2014 938 45,925 695 1,038 5.812

Notes:

(1) Information is retrieved from Moody's Corporation Database.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority 

Clearwater, Florida 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water 
Supply Authority (the ³Agency´), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency¶s basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated February 16, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency¶s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency¶s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency¶s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity¶s financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. 

1401 MANATEE AVENUE WEST, SUITE 1200 � BRADENTON, FLORIDA 34205 � 941�747�4483 � FAX 941�747�6035 � www.mjcpa.com 
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency¶s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity¶s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity¶s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Bradenton, Florida 
February 16, 2024 
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TAMPA BAY WATER 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

SECTION I 
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

Financial Statements 
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial 

statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses identified?  yes X  no 

Significant deficiencies identified not considered 
to be material weaknesses?  yes X  none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  yes X  no 

Federal Programs and State Financial Assistance Projects 
There was not an audit of major federal award programs or state financial assistance projects as of September 30, 
2023 due to the total amount expended being less than $750,000. 

SECTION II 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

None reported. 

SECTION III 
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Not applicable. 

SECTION IV 
STATE PROJECTS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Not applicable. 
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TAMPA BAY WATER 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

None noted
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Tampa Bay Water (A Regional Water Supply Authority)

Schedule of Debt Service Coverage - Utility System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001A, 2005, 2011, 2011A

2013, 2015A, 2015B, 2016A, 2016B, 2016C, 2020 Master, and 2022 Bonds

Article I. September 30, 2023
Revenue

Actual water demand (mgd) 202.2040
Uniform rate (per 1,000 gallons) $ 2.5989

Revenue from sales 187,134,890
Transfer (to) from Rate Stabilization Fund 1,150,542

188,285,432
Purchase price amortization credit (10,231,557)
Ligitation and insurance recoveries 12,682
Investment revenue - unrestricted 3,368,312
Total revenue 181,434,869
Net revenue 181,434,869
Annual debt service payments Series 2001A bonds 3,000,000
Annual debt service payments Series 2005 bonds 26,982,075
Annual debt service payments Series 2013 bonds 3,619,550
Annual debt service payments Series 2015A bonds 7,611,150
Annual debt service payments Series 2015B bonds 3,643,795
Annual debt service payments Series 2016A bonds 4,356,688
Annual debt service payments Series 2016B bonds 1,332,746
Annual debt service payments Series 2016C bonds 2,767,250
Annual debt service payments Series 2020 Master bonds 16,309,673
Annual debt service payments Series 2022 bonds 2,639,175
Total debt service 72,262,102
Total debt service and reserve requirements 72,262,102
Debt service and reserve coverage (times) 1.07

Fund balance 31,340,323
Net revenue plus fund balance $ 108,316,473
Debt service coverage (times) 1.50

Note 1: Investment revenue does not include interest on construction funds or unrealized investment gains in 2021.

Note 2: Operation and maintenance expenditures include capital expenditures for maintenance of the existing system of
in 2023.

Note 3: Fund balance is defined by the Master Bond Resolution and is calculated as of the prior year-end in accordance
with the Master Bond Resolution.

Note 4: Debt service coverage is calculated on the total debt service requirement, net of any capitalized interest
provided from bond proceeds, in accordance with the Master Bond Resolution.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR¶S REPORT 

 

 
To the Board of Directors of 

Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority 
Clearwater, Florida 

 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
financial statements of Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority (the ³Agency´), which comprise 
the Statement of Net Position as of September 30, 2023, and the Statements of Activities and Cash Flows, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report, thereon, dated February 16, 2024. 

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to 
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of Sections 4 and 5 of the Master Bond Resolution 
dated August 31, 1998, insofar as they relate to accounting matters for the following bonds: 

- Utility System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A 
- Utility System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 
- Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 
- Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A 
- Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 
- Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015A 
- Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015B 
- Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A 
- Taxable Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B 
- Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016C 
- Utility System Refunding Revenue Master Bond, Series 2020 
- Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 

However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, 
had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Agency¶s 
noncompliance with the above referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of Sections 4 and 5 of the 
Master Bond Resolution dated August 31, 1998, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Agency and the member governments and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than the specified parties. 

 

 
Bradenton, Florida 
February 16, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 

To the Board of Directors of 
Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority 

Clearwater, Florida 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the financial statements of Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority (the 
"Agency"), as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 16, 2024. 

Auditor¶s Responsibility 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America� the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 

Other Reporting Requirements 
We have issued our Independent Auditor¶s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and Independent Accountant¶s Report on an examination conducted in 
accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT�C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in 
accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which 
are dated February 16, 2024, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter. 

Prior Audit Findings 
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions 
have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. 
There were no findings or recommendations in the preceding annual financial report requiring correction. 

Official Title and Legal Authority 
Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal authority 
for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management 
letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This information is disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. 

Financial Condition and Management 
Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures 
and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Agency has met one or more of the 
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In 
connection with our audit, we determined that the Agency did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 
218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

 
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition 
assessment procedures for the Agency. It is management¶s responsibility to monitor the Agency¶s financial 
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and 
review of financial information provided by same. 
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Section 10.554(1)(i)2, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to 
improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations. 

Specific Information 
As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)6, Rules of the Auditor General, 
the Agency reported: 

a) The total number of Agency employees compensated in the last pay period of the Agency¶s fiscal year 
as 157. 

b) The total number of independent contractors to whom nonemployee compensation was paid in the last 
month of the Agency¶s fiscal year as 39. 

c) All compensation earned by or awarded to employees, whether paid or accrued, regardless of contingency 
as $14,004,244. 

d) All compensation earned by or awarded to nonemployee independent contractors, whether paid or 
accrued, regardless of contingency as $17,507,804. 

e) Each construction project with a total cost of at least $65,000 approved by the Agency that is scheduled 
to begin on or after October 1 of the fiscal year being reported, together with the total expenditures for 
such project is noted below: 

 
Project 

No. 
Actuals Through 

Project Name October 1, 2023 
01014 Surface Water Treatment Plant Expansion $ 2,974,506 
01609 Southern Hillsborough County Supply Expansion�Booster Pump Station (Brandon Booster Station) 15,161,796 
01610 South Hillsborough Pipeline (Segment A) 5,615,092 
01615 South Pasco Water Treatment Plant Caustic Feed System 1,379,937 
01616 South Hillsborough Pipeline (Segment B) 2,698,104 
07005 South Pasco Water Quality Treatment, Storage and Pumping, Improvements 81,063 
07033 Tampa Bay Desalination Facility Intake Connection Improvements�Phase 2 2,374,772 
07540 South Hillsborough Wellfield�Phase 1 174,697 
07606 SCADA Hardware Replacement and Enhancements 992,028 
09010 Tampa Bay Desalination Upgrade/Replace PLC/SCADA System Study 90,158 
09108 Cypress Creek Wellfield Surface Water Improvements�Phase 3 53,446 
50016 Eldridge�Wilde WF Pumps and Motors Replacement 8,578,847 
50021 Morris Bridge WF Improvements 1,397,693 
50031 Cypress Bridge Wellfield Improvements 3,266,153 
50040 Eldridge Wilde WF Underground Powerline 3,459,136 
50046 Lake Bridge Chemical Piping Replacement 951,466 
50049 High Service Pump Station Chemical Piping Replacement 79,075 
50051 Cypress Creek Water Treatment Plant Chemical Piping Replacement 314,879 
50071 Cypress Creek Pump Station Variable Frequency Drives 34,334 
50074 C.W. Bill Young Regional Reservoir�Compressors Replacement 70,238 
50075 Surface Water Treatment Plant�Renewal and Replacement Program � Phase I 1,186,577 
 Total $ 50,933,997 
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f) A budget variance based on the budget adopted under Section 189.016(4), Florida Statutes, before the
beginning of the fiscal year being reported if the Agency amends a final adopted budget under Section
189.016(6), Florida Statutes, as noted on page 108.

Additional Matters 
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions 
of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect 
on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those charged with governance. 
In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings. 

Purpose of this Letter 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, 
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, federal 
and other granting agencies, the Board of Directors, and applicable management, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Bradenton, Florida 
February 16, 2024 

154



 

 

 
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT¶S REPORT 

 

 
To the Board of Directors of 

Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority 
Clearwater, Florida 

 
We have examined Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority¶s (the ³Agency´) compliance with 
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds during the year ended September 30, 
2023. Management is responsible for the Agency¶s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the Agency¶s compliance based on our examination. 

 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Agency¶s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
examination does not provide a legal determination on the Agency¶s compliance with specified requirements. 

We are required to be independent and to meet our ethical responsibilities in accordance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to the examination engagement. 

 
In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the year 
ended September 30, 2023. 

 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Agency and the Auditor General, State of Florida, 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

 
Bradenton, Florida 
February 16, 2024 
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